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PETITION 

Filed: March 2, 1978 

Your Petitioner, the State Highway and Transportation Com-

missioner of Virginia, files this Petition in accordance with 

TitlJ 33.1, Chapter 1, Article 7, and Title 25, Chapter 1.1, 

Of t je Code of v1·rg1·n1·a, u 1950, as amended, and such general laws 

as mJy be applicable for the purpose Of condemning the land here-
. I inafter described and alleges as follows: 

1. John w. Mcclintock, Jr., Attorney at Law, is the duly 

auth9rized agent and attorney for the State Highway and Trans­

portJtion Commissioner of Virginia, for the purpose of insti­

tutijg this condemnatio~ proceeding, as is shown by a signed 

declJration hereto attached, marked "Exhibit A", and asked to 

be rJad as a part of this Petition, and John w. Mcclintock, Jr., 

AttoJney at Law, is authorized to file this proceeding in the 

name of and on behalf of the State. Highway and Transportation 

Comm:iJss ioner of Virginia. 

2. 

pensated 

the ~and 
any Jnd 

and Jet 

grapj 4 

3. 

The right and property acquired and intended to be com­

for in this proceeding is the fee simple interest to 

shown within red lines on the attached plans along with 

all easements as are needed, all of which is described 

forth in "Exhibit B", and described in detail in Para-

of this petition. 

The aforesaid property is necessary for the construe-

tion, reconstruction, alterriation, maintenance and repair of 

a po,tion or portions 

ginia Highway System, 

VirgJ.nia. 

of a public highway embraced in the Vir-

known as Route 19, in Tazewell County, 

1 



4.· The land, or interest therein, taken lies in Maiden 

SprinJ Magisterial District of Tazewell County, and is described 

as follows: 
I . 
"Being as shown on Sheet 17 of the plans for Route 19, State 

Highwjy Project 6019-092-108, RW-201, and lying on both sides 
I 

I of the off ice revised northbound lane centerline and adjacent 

to thJ south existing right of way line of present Route 19, 

from ~he lands of Stella G. Rasnick, et al, at approximate Sta­

tion ~21+ 80 to the lands of Stella G. Rasnick, et al, at approxi­

mate Jtation 327+17 and containing 1.30 acres, more or less, 
I 

I 
land.1 

this project is for the improvement of a section of primary 
I . 

highway system Route 19 between Russell-Tazewell County Line 
I 

and Ol561 Mi. E. Int. Rte. 460 (Claypool Hill) and will include 

right to construct, reconstruct, repair, improve, alter and main-

tain the said Route in accordance with the attached plans marked 

Exhiblt B. It also includes the right to utilize the land in 

the flture (1) for construction, reconstruction, alteration, 

improiement, repair and maintenance of the said Route, (2) for 
I 

all other Highway purposes, and (3) in accordance with all the 

right! and incidents normally acquired in the property by (fee 

simpl~, easements, etc.) 
I 
5. Your petitioner has made a bona fide but ineffectual 
I . 

effort to purchase said property from the owners hereof but has 
J 

been bnable to do so because of the inability to agree upon the 

purchlse price therefor. 

2 



6. Your petitioner is of the opinion that the only persons 

who are entitled to an interest in the compensation to be ascer­

tainJ1d in this proceeding are those named hereinabove, and that 

ther~ are no encumbrances of record, and it will not be necessary 
I 

for a! Special Commissioner to ascertain liens to be appointed 
I 

in t~is proceeding, as disclosed by title examination of the 
I 

aboveldescribed land. 

7. That on or about the 17th day of November, 1977, your 

petitioner caused to be recorded in the off ice of the Clerk of 
I 
I 

this tourt in Deed Book 437, page 859, Certificate No. C-28055, 
I 

I 

as pdovided by Article 7 of Chapter 1 of Title 33.1 of the Code 
I 

of Virginia, 1950, as amended. 

8. Thereupon, pursuant to the provisions of the aforesaid 

Article 7 of Chapter 1 of Title 33.1 of the Code of Virginia, 
I 

titl~_to the property described in paragraph 4 of this petition 

veste1d in the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
i 
iWHEREFORE, your petitioner respectfully prays unto this 
I 

Honorlable Court in accordance with the provisions of Title 25. 
I 

Chapt!er 1.1 and Article 7 of Chapter 1 of Title 33 .1 of the Code 

of vJrginia of 1950, as amended, that Commissioners may be appointed 

and s!ummoned to ascertain and report what will be a just compen­

satiJn for the property herein proposed to be condemned, including 
I 

the 1asement for the relocation of utilities, if any such relo-

cati9n is required; and to determine a just compensation for 
I 

dama~es, if any, which may accrue to the residue beyond the 
I 

enhancement in value, if any, to such residue by reason of the 
' I 

takiJg; that pursuant to the provisions of Title 25, Chapter 
I 

l~l ~nd Chapter 1 of Title 33.1 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, 

I 
I 3 
j 



I -

as amended, any and all defendants hereto shall be required to 

file in writing in this cause any grounds of defense which they 

have hereto; that this Court be directed to confirm the vesting 

of title in the Commonwealth of Virginia as aforesaid and take 

all srch other steps to carry out the intents of Article 7 of 

Chaptjr 1 of Title 33.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as ·amended, 

as maJY be necessary; that your petitioner may have such other 

fu.rthkr and general relief as the nature of this case may re-

quire .• 

4 



EXCEPTIONS TO REPORT OF COMMISSIONERS 

Filed: April 16, 1979 

: The Petitioner would respectfully set forth the following 

Exceptions to the Report of Commissioners made on April 9, 1979: 

: 1. 
i 

The Respondents' expert witness based his opinion of 
I 

thelfair market value of the property being condemned upon its 

pot~ntial use for commercial purposes. The attorney for the 
I 

Petitioner attempted to cross examine this expert relative to 
I 

theleconomic effect of this potential use on the remaining prop­

erty· of the Respondents, and the improvements thereon, in an 
I 

effort to establish tht a commercial use of the property acquired 

was not its highest and best use considering the Respondents' 

property as a whole. The Court erred in sustaining Respondents' 
I 

obj~ction to this cross examination. 
I 
I 

1 2. The Court erred in granting instructions, over the Peti-
1 

tio~er's objection, which permitted the Commissioners to return 
' an ~ward for damage to the residue of Respondents' property. 

3. The Court erred in refusing Instruction 1 offered by 

the Petitioner. 

The errors of the Court as above set out had, or could 

rea~onably have had, a substantial effect on the award of the 
I 

Commissioners as set out in their report. 

5 



ORDER OVERRULING EXCEPTIONS TO 
AND CONFIRMING COMMISSIONERS' REPORT 

Filed: June 19, 1979 

This day came the Petitioner, the State Highway and Trans-

porttation Commissioner of _Virginia, by his attorney, and came 

alsl the Respondents, Calvin T. Cantrell and Edith c. Cantrell, 
I 

by their attorney, and it appearing to the Court that the report 
I of the Commissioners hereinbefore appointed with the certificate 

of !he Clerk of this Court administering the oath to the said 

C I · · . h 9 h d f · 1 1979 d 1 d omm1ss1oners, was on t e t ay o Apr1 , , u y returne 

to lnd filed by the Court herein; that exceptions to the said 

repJrt were duly and timely filed by the State Highway and Trans­

porJation Commissioner of Virginia, the Petitioner herein; that 
I 

on June 8, 1979, the Court heard the arguments of counsel for 

·the parties hereto on the said exceptions; and that the Court 

after considering the matter, overrµled the said exceptions; 

And it appearing to the Court that the said Commissioners 

ascertained that the value of the land taken herein was $19,500.00, 

and that the damages to the residue, beyond the enhancement in 

value to the residue by reason of the taking, was $7,000.00, 

and,that the said report should be confirmed; therefore, the 

CouJt doth overrule the exceptions to said report and doth APPROVE, 

RATJFY and CONFIRM said report in all particulars, and doth CON­

FI~ unto the Commonwealth of Virginia, the fee simple title 

to Jhe following property lying and being in Maiden Spring Magis-
1 

terial District of Tazewell County, Virginia, to-wit: 

6 



Parcel 037 - Being as shown on Sheet 17 of the 
plans for Route 19, State Highway Project 6019-092-
108, RW-201, and lying on both sides of the office 
revised northbound lane centerline and adjacent to 
the south existing right of way line of present Route 
19, from the lands of Stella G. Rasnick, et al,. at 
approximate Station 321+80 to the lands of Stella G. 
Rasnick, et al, at approximate Station 327+17 and 
containing 1.30 acres, more or less, land. 

And, further, it appearing to the Court that the State High-

wayjand Transportation Commissioner of Virginia has heretofore 
I 

cau~ed to be recorded in the Clerk's Office of this Court Cer-
1 

tificate No. C-28055 for $7,532.00; that the title to the afore-
1 

i 
sai8 real estate thereby vested in the Commonwealth of Virginia, 

I 
in 1ccordance with the provisions of §§33.1-119 and 33.1-122 

of hhe Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended; and, that none of 
I 

thejfunds represented by the said Certificate of Deposit were 

withdrawn and paid to the Respondents as is permitted and pro-
1 

vid~d for in §33.1-124 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Court doth ADJUDGE, ORDER and DECREE 

tha~ the State Highway and Transportation Commissioner of Vir­

ginia pay to the Clerk of this Court on behalf of Calvin T. 

Canlrell and Edith c. Cantrell, who are the respondent landowners 

in hhis action, the sum of $26,500.00, with interest at the rate 
. I 
of six percent (6%) per annum on the sum of $18,968.00, this 

bei~g the excess of the award of the Commissioners as aforesaid 

ovet the amount represented by the aforesaid Certificate of 
I 
I 

Depbsit, from the 17th day of November, 1977, the date on which 

the above-mentioned Certificate was duly recorded in said Clerk's 

Office, to 
I Court; and 

I· 

I 
I 

the date upon which the principal sum is paid into 

the Court doth further ORDER and DECREE that the 

7 
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Commonwealth of Virginia be relieved from any liability by virtue 
I 

of the recordation of the Certificate aforesaid; and that the 

pro~eedings herein be recorded and indexed as provided by §25-
1 . 

46.27 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended, with reference 

to Je made showing the book and page number of such recordation 

on lhe margin of the page where said Certificate of Deposit No. 
I 

C-28055 is spread. 

The Court does further ORDER and DIRECT that the Clerk of 

this Court upon receiving the aforesaid sums of money shall 

delJver the same to Calvin T. Cantrell,. Edith c. Cantrell and 

JacJ P. Chambers, their attorney, without further order of this 
I Court. 

The Court doth further ORDER and DIRECT that the costs 

herein, including $20.00, each to the Commissioners appointed 

herJin who served, namely, Donald Horton, M. H. Lowe, Jr., David 

L. Hankins, Carolyn McGuire, and w. c. Baugh, and $10.00 to 

Harolld McGlothlin, Beverly Horne and Tom Metcalf, Jr., who were 

summoned and appeared but did not serve herein, together with 

mile~ge as provided for in S 25-46.22 of the Code of Virginia 

of 1950, as amended, shall be paid by the State Highway and 

Tranbportation Commissioner of Virginia, unless such costs have 

herebofore been paid by him;- and the same shall be charged and . I . 
taxea by the Clerk of ths Court as part of the costs herein, I . 
as provided by law. 

And the Court doth further ORDER and DIRECT that the Clerk 

of this Court forthwith deliver to the attorney for the Peti­

tionlr a certified copy of this order without awaiting the elapse 
I 

of 21 days from the date of entry hereof. 

·8 



And it is further ORDERED and DIRECTED that the transcript 

of tne testimony introduced and proceedings had upon the trial 

of t~is action before this Court shall become a part of the 

recbJd in this cause, in accordance with the provisions of Rule 

5:9 Jf the Rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia, provided such 

tran~cript is filed in the off ice of the Clerk of this Court 

within sixty (60) days after entry of this order. 

J
And nothing further remaining to be done in this cause, 

the ame is hereby stricken from the docket. 

9 



NOTICE OF APPEAL 

Filed: July 6, 1979 

Take notice that the petitioner seeks ~n appeal to the 

Supreme Court of Virginia of the final Order Overruling Excep­

tiobs to and Confirming Commissioner's Report entered herein . I . 
dn the 19th day of June, 1979. The transcript of testimony is 

I . 
to be hereafter filed. 



INSTRUCTION 1 

The Court instructs the Commissioners that you are to deter-

mine! two questions in this proceeding; first, the just compensa­

tiori for the property being taken; second, the damages, if any, 

to the remaining lands of the owners, beyond the enhancement 

in ~alue, if any, to such residue, by reason of the taking, or 

the construction. 

The Court instructs you that just compensation as used in 

thesje instructions means the fair market value of .the property 

tak,n. Fair market value is defined as the price which one, 
I 

unde'r no compulsion, is willing to take for the property which 

he Jas for sale, and which another, under no compulsion, being 

desJrous and able to buy, is· wiliing to pay for that property. 

You must determine the fair market value of the property 

being condemned, not what the property may be worth to the owners 

or Jo the State Highway Commissioner of Virginia. The use to 

whijh the property is to be put by the State Highway Commissioner 

doeJ not affect its fair market value at the time of the taking, 

NovJmber 17, 1977. 

In determining the fair market value of the property at 

the time of the taking, you may consider its adaptability and 

suitability for any legitimate purpose, but you should award 

onlJ the fair market value of the property as it stands at the 

timJ of the taking in view of all of the purposes to which it 

is leasonably and naturally adapted, and not its prospective 

or lpeculative value based upon future expenditures and improve-
! 

ments. 

:l..1 



You are instructed that in determining whether there is 

any damage to the remaining property of the owners by reason 

of fhe taking of the property described in the petition, or the 

construction of the highway, the test is the difference in the 

valhe immediately before and after the taking, considering every 

cir1umstance, present and future, ~hich affects its value. 

Rem!te and speculative profits and advantages, however, are not I . 
to ~e considered. 

You are instructed that if you believe from your view of 

the property and from the evidence before you that there is any 

enhancement in the market value of the owners' remaining property 

by Jeason of the construction or improvement contemplated or 

mad, by the State Highway Commissioner of Virginia, that you 

must offset the amount of such enhanced value against the damages, 

if Jny, resulting to such remaining property of the owners by 

reas1

1

on of such construction; provided such enhancement in value 

shall not be offset against the value of the property taken. 

You are instructed that the burden is upon the owners of 

the property condemned to prove by a preponderance of the evi­

dencj that there has been damage to the residue of their property. 

On the other hand, the burden of proof to establish any enhance­

ment in the market value to the remaining property by reason 

of the construction or improvement is upon the State Highway 

C 
I. . ommi1.ss1oner. 

The Court instructs you tqat you are the sole judge of the 

weight of the evidence and the credibility of the witnesses, 

and iou have a right to discard or accept the testimony or any 

1.2 



part thereof or any witness which ybu regard proper to discard 

or Jccept, when considered in connection with the whole evidence 

in Jhe cause, but you have no right arbitrarily to disregard 

the credible testimony of a witness. And in ascertaining the 

pre~onderance -Of the evidence and the credibility of witnesses, 

you Lay take into consideration the demeanor of the witness on 

thel !witness stand; his apparent candor or fairness; his bias, 

if any; his intelligence; his interest, or lack of it, in the 

outcbme of the case; his opportunity, or lack of it, for knowing 

the truth and for having observed the facts to which he testi­

fied; and from all these and taking into consideration all the 

facts and circumstances of the case, you are to determine the 

credibility of the witnesses and the preponderance of the evi-

dence. 

lThe Court instructs you that it is not necessary that all 

agre upon the report to be made to the Court, but a majority 

of ybu have the right to reach a conclusion and file your report 

settkng forth that conclusion. If a minority desires to do so, 

they may file a minority report. 

:1.:J 



ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 

The court erred in preventing counsel for the Commissioner 

from cross-examining the Landowners' witnesses regarding how 
I 

theicommercial use of the property taken would affect.the re-
1 

maiJder of the property. 

1.4 
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I. 

TRANSCRIPT" OF PROCEEDINGS 3 

April 9, 1979 

The following matter came on· to~e heard on this. 

the 9th day of April, 1979, before the Honorable Robert L. 

Powell, Judge of the Circuit Court of Tazewell County, 

Virginia, and a commission of five. 

The Court Reporter was duly sworn. 

THE COURT: Is the Highway D~partrnent ready to 

proceed? 

MR. ALTIZER: Yes, we are, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Are the landowners ready to proceed? 

MR. COMBS: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Are you ready to proceed? 

~ z..m. ALTIZER:. • Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Have the cotr.missioners brought out. 

·The comnd.ssion was sworn voir dire. 

THE COURT: Lady and gentleir.en, you are called in 

here today as commissioners to hear what we call a con-

dernnation case. The State Highway and Transportation 

Commissioner seeks land for h1le improvement of U. S. Route 

19 West of Claypool Hill, right in the vicinity pf the 

State Police Headquarters, approximately half a mile West 

of the intersection there with ~cute 460. The property 

belongs to Calvin E. Cantrell and Edi~~ C. Cantrell. The 

Highway Department is being represented by Mr. Altizer 

and Mr. Hart, who sit over to your right. The property 

808 V. BRANSON 
COURT REPORTER 
ROUT£ e. eox 65 1.~ 

ABINGOON. lliRGINIA 24210 .. "-' 

... ~ ·~·.--· - -· .. . . . . ,, ~ .... 
. -. ·.~ 



l 

2 

3 
I 

4 .• 

5 

6. 

·7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 
- .. 

13 

14 

- 15 
. ;,- -

16 

17 

.. 
18 

19 

20 

21 

• 
')•") ---
23 
.... 

2-1 

25 

I 
! 

.. 4 

owners are being represented 'by Mr. Fred Combs and Mr. 

Jack Chambers who sit over td your left. I will ask you 

these questions. Are all of you residents of Ta·zewell 

County? 
I-· 
I 

"(Affirmative response~) 

THE COURT: Do all of you own a freehold interest 

in real estate here in Tazewell County? 

(Affirmative response.) 

THE COURT: Are any of you related by blood or 

marriage tc '.the landowners? 

(Negative response.) 
... .: .. ... 

THE COURT: Are any· of you employees or agents of 

the Commonwealth or the State Highway Department? 
........ 

(Negative response.) 

THE COURT: Do ¥OU have any interest, direct or 

indirect, in the land that is involved in this case? 

(Negative response.} 

~ COURT: Have you made or have you·.been: req~ested 

to make an appraisal 'of the property involved in the case? 

(Negative response.) 

THE.COURT: Have you formed or expressed any 

opinion with regard to the issues involved in the case? · 

(Negative response.) 

THE COURT: Are you sensible of any bias or 

BOB V.· BRANSON 
COURT .REPORTER 
ROUTE 9. eox 65 

· ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 24210 
1.6 
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1 5 

2 prejudi.ce in this type of case, the Highway taking 

3 property? 

4 (Negative response·.) 

5 THE COURT: Do you know of any reason.why you 

6 .cannot make a .fair and impartial award for compensation and 

- 7. damages, if any, according to the law and the evidence in 

the case?· 

9 (Negative response.) 

10 ·THE COURT: Does any member of your family have 

. 11 any interest, direct or indirect, involved in the land 

12 in this take? 

13 (Negative· response.) ,• 

14 THE COURT: Are you associated in any business· 
--

15 ventures with owners of the land? 

16 (Negative respo1:lse. ) 

17' THE COURT: Do you have ~y contracts with the 

·18 Virginia Highway Department? 

19 (Negative response.) 

... 20 THE COURT: Are you related to or ~o you have any 

21 business connection or association with any of the lawyers 

22 in this case or any members of their law firms? 

23 (Negative response.) 

THE COURT: Do you own any property or have any 

25 
interest in lands through which the State Highway Com-

808 V. BRANSON' 
COURT P.E?ORTER . .... 7 
ROUTE 8. SOX 6:1 ..I. 

ABINGDON. VIRGINIA 24210°' 

I 
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2 missioner has acquired land for highway purposes or is 

3 taking or threatening to take for condemnation? 

4 (Negative response.) 

5 THE COURT: Before you-were notified of your 

6 ap~ointment here, did anyone aside from the Clerk or the 

7 I Sheriff or someone associate~ with the Court ask you 

8 whether or not you would be able to serve on this com-
\ . 

9 missj_on? 

10 (Negative response.) 

11 THE COURT: Has the case been discussed with you 

12 in an"yway or have you heard any mention of the case? 

13 . (Negat~ ve response. ) 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2-1 

25 

THE COURT: I wi11· repeat this question. Does 

any one of you· know of any r~ason why you cannot make 

·a fair and impar.tial award upon the evidence and the law 

. that will ·be presented to you in the case? 

(Negative response.) 

THE COURT: Does the Highway Department have any 

.questions they would like to ask the commissioners? 

MR. ~TIZ~R: No, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: The landowner? 

MR. COHBS: no, Your ~Honor. 
i 

: THE COURT:. All. right.' You may strike 

THE cr.r,p.J(: Mr. Horn .and Mr. 

809 V. BRANSON. 
COURT .PEPOllTER 
ROUTE 8. BOX 65 
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l 7 

2 will stand aside, please. 

3 Mr. Horn and Hr. Metcalfe withdrew from the Cour.t-

4 room. 

5 The commission O·f five was duly sworn. 

6 THE COURT: .Do you wish to make opening statements 

7 or present some evidence here? 

8 MR. ALTIZER: No, sir. We waive opening statement. 

9 MR. COMBS: r think we should just let them have 

10 the map. 

11 MR. ALTIZER: Judge, we would like to hand out 

12 these maps to the commissioners. 

13 MR. ALTIZER: I would like to apologize for the . 
'· ,. 

14 quality on reproducing. They did not come out very well, 

15 

16 

17 

· 18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

j• 

but they do show the property involved here. 
...... 

THE COURT: Let all the ~itnesses who will testify 

in this case be sworn. 

The witnesses were duly sworn. 

THE COURT: Do you want the witnesses excluded 

from the Courtroom? 

retire. 

MR. HA.RT:. 
:-­

I would think so, Your Honor~ yes. 

THE COURT: All right.. Let the witnesses then 

MR. HART: I don't know that we need to exclude 

them before the view. 

BOB V. BRANSON 
COURT RE?OATER : 
ROUTE e. eox 6S ! 

ABINGDON. VIA(;INIA 24210 •. 1.9 
. .... _:: .... ·· --· 
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1 8 

2 THE COURT: I was going to ask if you wish to put 

3 your engineer on or someone to describe this map to the 

4 commissioners before they take their view. 

5 MR. CHAMBERS: I don't know as there's any value 

6 and I see no reason to exclude them now. 

7 MR. HART: I don't, either. We can do that. 

8 Frankly, we had planned to put him on after we've got 

9 back, but it might.save a little time if we would go on 

10 ·the view, because I think there will be some explanation 

11 down there on the site. 

-
12 THE COURT: All right, then. You-all may just 

13 have a seat. 

14 The witnesses resmned their -seats. 

15 THE COURT: Lady and gentlemen, we will t~ke a 

16 recess now to take a v~ew of the property. Do not discuss 

17 ·the property with anyone other than the attorneys. Be 

18 careful what kind of discuss.ion you have about the property 

19 while you are down there to ·.find out about it. The 

20 Sheriff will provide transpo:rtation for you. After you 

21 have come back, you will hear evidence and we will proceed 

2'2 with the case. So you may· retire now to t·ake a view. 

23 

24: 

25 

The commission withdrew from the Courtroom at 

10:20 o'clock a.m.· on April 9th, 1979, to view the 

property in question. 

908 V. BRANSON 
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. 
2 The conunission returned to the Courtroom at 11:40 

3 o'clock a.m. on April 9~, 1979. 

4 THE COURT: All right. You may proceed. 

5 MR. ALTIZER: Your Honor, the State Highway Com-

6 missioner would like to call as its first witness Mr. Bob 

7 Canter. 

ROBERT L. CANTER 

9 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as 

10 follows: 

11 DIRECT EXAHINATION 

12 ·BY MR. ALTIZER: 

13 o.. Would you state your na~, please. 

14 A. Robert L. Canter. 

15 Mr. Canter, by whom are yo~ employed? -· 
16 A. The· Virginia Department of· Highways anq 

17 .Transportation. 

18 And how are you employed? 

19 I am employed in the Right of Way Division 

20 
as· a right of way agent. 

21 
Briefly,. what are your responsibilities 

22 
in that position? 

23 
A. To acquire right of way for proposed 

24: 
projects for the Department. 

0. . 
25 

Mr. Canter, in this particular proceeding, 
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1 Canter - Direct by Altizer ·10 

2 what highway project is of concern to us today? 

3 A. The project between the Russell and Tazewell 

4 County line and a short distance beyond the intersection 

5 of 460 and 19 at Claypool Hill. The project ties into the 

6 existing four lane section. 

7 .Brie~ly, this is expanding Route 19 between 

8 Claypool Hill and the Russell County line from two lanes 

9 to four lanes, is that correct? 

10 A. Yes, sir·. 

11 Are you familiar with t?:at.project? 

12 A. Yes, sir, I am •. 

13 nave you been working regarding that project 

14 for the State Highway Department? 

15 A. Yes, sir. 
.. 

16 Are you familiar with Mr. Calvin Cantrell 

17 and Edith Cantrell's property? 

18 A. Yes, sir, I am~ 

19 Could you describe for the Court the 

2o location of that property? 

21 

??. 

--
23 

24 

25 

This property is located on the South side 

of present Route 19, approximately one mile West of 

Claypool Hill intersection. 

Okay. I think all the commissioners have 

been. on the property with us this morning. Could you give 
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a brief, narrative description of the existing property? 

A. The property lies, as I say, on the South 

side below the existing.grade of Route 19. The proposed 

two-lane sections will be located approximately eighty 

feet off the present ROute 19. 

O. ~. Canter, before we get into that, what 

I would like to get from you is how many acres are in-

valved in the property that the highway is acquiring from 

Mr. Cantrell and compare that with how many existing acres 

he had of all of the property .at that,location. 

A. The present landowner owns.approximately 

five point seventy-two acres. 

O. Okay. How much of .that is being acquired 

or has been acquired by the State Department of Highways 

and Transportation? . i 

A. One point three acres has been acquired for 

the necessary project. 

O. Mr. Cantrell, what is the road frontage in 

terrrs of feet of the exis~ing property as it now lies 

adjacent to the highway, fronting the highway, from the 

West to the East property line? Do you know how many 

feet that· is? 

Canter. 

I'm sorry. ·Did I call you Mr. Cantrell or 

BOB V. BRANSON 
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1 canter - Direct by Altizer 12 

2 Mr. Cannon? 

3 A. Approximately five hundred forty feet. 

~ .4 Q. OkaY: •. And. how does that compare with the 

5 road frontage after this acquisition? How much road 

6 frontage will be on the remaining property? 

.. 7 A. Approximately the same • 

8 Q. Okay. Now, I think you have in your hands 

9 a map that has been distributed to all the conunissioners 

10 and the Court? 

11 
A. Yes, sir. 

12 Q. Okay. Could you briefly, just for the 

13 
corranissioners and the Court, give a description of the 

14 
''dimensions of this particular property that had been 

15 
·acquired by the State Department of Highways? I think 

16 
you just testified it was five hundred forty feet along 

17 
the existing right of way line. 

·1s ~ The· proposed take in depth ranges from 

19 
approximately ninety-five feet on the East side to 

20 
approximately one hundred. ten feet on the West property 

line, and, of course, across the entire front. 
21 

· Q. And I take it that the back line on this 
2'2 

map, which will be the proposed right of.way line, that is 
23 

approximately the saI:le footage a·s the existing frontage? 
24 

A. Yes, sir. 
25 

. I . ·-· . 
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Canter - Direct by Altizer 13 

Q. And that is one point three acres? 

A. One point three acres has been acquir.ed. 

Q. Mr. Canter, could you, for the commissioners, 

exp.lain ·how this property - - the topography of the 

property in relation to the highway as it now lies adjacent 

·tO .the highway? Are there existing cuts and fills on this 

property? 

·A. Yes·, sir. The maximum fill, if we start 

from the Eastern property line, is approximately twenty 

feet and this is approximately in front of the location 

of the dwelling. And then there is a maxim.urn cut of · 

approximately eighteen feet on the Western edge or end 

of the property. 

·o. So you are saying that the present fill in 

front of the Cantrell residence is approximately twenty 

feet, is that correct? 

A. That is correct. 

.. Okay. Do you have the information as to how 

far it is from the front of the Cantrell residence to the 

present. toe of the fill, the foot of the.fill, in feet? 

A. Approximately two hundred feet. Two hundred 

and ten or fifteen feet from.the existing right of way. 

. Q. 

A. 

From the existing right of way? 

To the.front edge of the dwelling. 
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1 Canter - Direct by Altizer 14 

2 Okay. And how far will it be after the 

3 highway is completed fro~ the front of Mr. Cantrell's 

4 residence to the new right of way line? 

5 A. Approximately one hundred ten feet. 

6 Okay. And how far will it be from the front 

· 7 of Mr. Cantrell's residence to the foot or toe; I' rn 

8 not sure whether you call it the foot or the toe; of the 

9 fill? 

10 A. The toe. 

11 0. The toe of the fill. How far will it be 

12 from ~!r. Cantrell 1 s residence to the toe·of the.fill? 

13 A. Approximately a hundred and forty-five feet. 

14 Mr. Canter, will the new fill be higher or 

15 lower as compared to the present fill? ..... 

16 It will be lower. 

17 So there will be less of a fill in front 

1s of Mr. Cantrell's home after the construction is completed 

l9 than there is now, is that correct? 

20 

22 

23. 

24 

.. I. 

A. That is correct. 

Okay. Let's get ·to the cut·on the West 

end of the property. You have· ·already testified· it's 

presently a maximum of eighteen feet, is; that correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

And that eighteen feet, how is that 
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deterrnined? 'i·lhat measur.ement is from what to what? 

A. From the e·xisting. We go from the existing 

cut to the finished cut-, and due to the terrain of this 

property, the cut is less, or.it descends to the South, 

less than it is to the North. 

Q; All right. Are you saying after this new 

lane is constructed, the cut on the West end of Mr. 

Cantrell's property will be less than the cut that is now 

existing? 

A. That is true, due to the terrain, the 

present terrain. 

. 
Q. · Could. you explain how the terrain lies 

which would make this so? 

A. The terrain of this proper.J:y rises from· the 

South to. the· North.· ·.~ 

Q. Okay.· That is coming toward the highway? 

A. R,ight. 

Q. ·'·Al1d this is on the West end of the property 

that we are talking ~out? 

A.. Yes, sir. 

Q. Okay. · Mr. Canter, is there an existing 

entrance into Mr. Cantrell's property? 

A. Yes, sir, at the Eastern edge of this 

property. 
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2 
Will that entrance be retained after the 

3 
construction of the highway? 

4 
Yes, sir •. This entrance will be restored. 

5 
Do you know what the grades are, the existing 

6 
grade? 

7 
Yes, sir. The present or existing.percent 

·8 
is approximately ten percent. After construction approxi-

9 
mate·ly eight percent. 

10 
So the entrance where it. is presently located 

will be retained and it.will be a better entrance than 
. 11 

12 
he presently has? 

MR. CHAMBERS: Your Honor, we object to Mr. Altizer 
13 

14 
repeating Mr. Canter's testimony and leading him~ 

THE COURT: Don't lead him. 
15 

Q. Mr. Canter, will the new entrance be better 
16 

or worse than the present entrance? 
17 

MR. CHAMBERS: We object, Your Honor. 
18 

THE COURT: I sustain the objection. 
19 

' 
O. Would. you repeat what the grade for the new 

20. 

entrance will be? 
21 

MR. CHAMBERS: We. object, Your Honor. It's 
??· ...... 

repetitious. 
23 

MR. ALTIZER: Okay. 

TIIE COUR'!: I .sustain the ~bjecti.o.~. 
25 
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2 Mr. Canter, will there by any new entrances 

3 to Hr. Cantrell's property .as .a result of this constr.uction 

4 Yes, sir, there will be, in addition to the 

5 existing, one entrance provided to. the West of his 

6 dwelling. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2! 

25 

And this is an .entrance that is not 

presently in existence, is that correct? This will be an 

additional entrance f o:r him? 

A. Yes, sir, that is true. 

And where-will that bs located? Where will 

that entrance be located? 

A. It will be located fifty to seventy-five 

feet to the.West of Mr. Cantrell's dwelling. 

And I: think that was pointed out to the 

commission on the property this·morning, is that not 

correct? ·. 

A. Yes, sir. This was pointed out by the· 

.location of a short stake, unpainted, in the neighborhood 

of where a pine tree .. has been cut. 

THE COURT: One of the commissioners would like 

for the witness to clarify the .width of the entrances 

that will be provided. 

Q. Okay. Hr. Canter, ·what is the width of the 

present entrance into the Cantrell property? 
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Canter - Direct by Altizer 18 

A. The existing entrance is approximately ten 

feet in width. The proposed entrance will be approximately 

twelve feet in width. It is a standard entrance •. 

Q. You are saying the new entrance will be 

twelve feet, as opposed to -

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Okay. And how wide will the additional 

entrance be on the West end of the property? 

A. It will be the same width as the proposed. 

· It is a standard twelve feet. 

COHMISSIONER: I would like to get that clear and 

I think most of the commission would. That twelve feet 

will.be.both entrances, the West and East, will be t~elve 

foot wide from the highway into the Cantrell property? 

Q. Mr. Can~rell, is that correct? 

THE COURT: Mr. Canter. 

Q. Mr. Canter. 

A. ··That ·is correct. Both of them will be 

· . the same width. 

COHMISSIONER: Thankyou, sir. 

Q. Mr. Canter, one further question. Where 

would the elevation be of the new lane as compared to 

the existing lane? 

A. The proposed two lanes will be within a 
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foot or two of the existing elevation a·f the old Route !9 ·' 
or present Route 1.9. -

0. IS that higher or lower? .. 

A. The new lane will be approximately a foot 

and a half lower. 

MR. ALTIZER: That• s all t..'le questions we have, 

Your Honor. 

THE COURT: It's 12:00 o'clock now. Let's take a 

break for lunch, then you can begin your cross examination 

right after lunch. 

THE COORT: Members of the commission, do not discus. 

this case while you Are out with anyon~ or permit anyone 

to discuss it with you. Come back at 1:00 o'clock and 
... 

we will resume .• ..... 
The Court recessed at 12:"01 o'clock p.m. on 

.. 

. April 9th, 1979. 

The Court reconvened at 1:10 o•·clock p.m. on 
; 

April 9th, 1979. -
THE COURT: Are you ready to proceed? 

MR. COHBS: Yes, sir. 
' 

MR. ALTIZER:· Yes, sir. 

The commission entered the Courtroom. 

ROBERT L. CANTER 

having been previously sworn, was recalled and testified 
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as ·follows: 

DIRECT EV. .. HINATION 

BY M..~. ALTIZER: 

Q. Mr.· Canter, when was this property acquired 

by the State Highway Conunission? 

~ November 17th, 1977. 

Q. .. Mr. <;:anter, I would like to ask a couple of 

questiops to clear up something that you testified to 

earlier this morning with regard to the cuts and fills, 

the existing cut and the existing fill _on the.property, 

with what the cut and fill w,ill be on the new highway .• 

Now, ·would you tell the Court and c9mmission· what the 

·' existing fill and cuts are in terms of the footage from 

-the centerline of the highway down to the toe of the fill 

and from the centerline of t~e highway to the top of the 

cut? 

~ Beginning at the Western end of this 

property, as we viewed it this morning, you noticed that 

we are higher than the existing road there, and the cut 

sections are elevations I gave you this morning. With 

relation to cuts, that pertains to the finished grade 

elevations or cuts and fills, we were approximately 

twenty-five foot above on top of the knoll. That elevation 

would be a twenty-five foot cut as it stands now. But 

... , -
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1 Canter - Direct by Altizer 21 

2 foot cut, as I referred to. Then as you come East in 

3 the fill section, I gave you a fill of twenty feet. There 

4 will be a grade of twenty feet, a finished grade elevation. 

5 That fill as it is now, or down to the depths of it, in 

6 relation to the existing, it might be three or four feet. 

7 It could be twenty-two feet down in the sag, where you saw 

8 the drain pipe .under .. the existing road~ 

9 Oka=r. Mr. Canter, you are saying it could 

10 be three or four feet difference or up to twenty-two. I 

11 take it you do not have a correct exact measurement of what 

12 

13 

15 

16 

17 

19 

20 

21 

22 

25 

the f.ill is now? 

That's true, yes, sir. 

You are just giving your estimate? 

A. Yes, sir. 

.But the twenty feet fill. finished construe-

tion and the eighteen foot cut, those are precise figures, 

is that correct? 

A. Yes, sir,.they are. 

Okay. · And -they are both less than the 

-existing cuts and fills on th~ property now, is that 

correct? 

That's true. 

MR. CHAMBERS: We object, Your Honor. 

MR. ALTIZER: I believe that's all the questions 
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1' 

i 

2 we have. 

3 MR. COMBS: I've just got a couple of questions 

4 for Mr. Canter • .. 

5 CROSS EXAHINATIOn 

6 BY MR. COMBS: 

7 Q. -- The home in which the Cantrells live is 

8 located - - Let's say if this were the existing road, 

9 their home is located at a relative distance back. .at:- a:~ 

10 lower elevation than the existing roadway, is that correct? 

11 A Yes, sir. 

12 Q. And from what you said on the site this 

13 morning, you said that from the centerline of the existing 

14" , highway you are coming over eighty f·eet to the centerline 

15 I of the new highway, is that correct? -·I 
. 
16 . A. Yes, sir • 

17 Q. And this· will be a foot, possibly two feet, 

18 lower than this grade we have right here, than this 

19 elevation? 
. . . 

"<" 

20 
A. Yes, sir. . 

21 0. A foot to two feet, I think you said? 

22 
A. Yes, sir. 

23 
0. Now, I understand your testir.i.ony to be that 

24: 
the maximum fill you will have will be .twenty feet, a 

' 
twenty foot fill? 

25 
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2 A. Yes, sir. 

3 Q. The sight from the house in which the 

4 Cantrells live, that will be because this out in this 

5 direction, somewhat c_loser to their house. This is going 

6 to~mean now they are looking·at less of a grade, less of 

7 an elevation, up to this road. It will be a little bit 

8 ·g·reater an elevation there. Their view will be cut 

9 slightly. It will be cut some.by moving the highway over, 

10 is that correct? 

11 MR. HART: Your Honor, I think that's a question 

12 I don't understand the question, frankly~ and ·it seems to 
. . 

13 · me he• s asking for. something the commission can decide. 

14 · THE .COURT: He is on cross examination. If he can 

15 answer, let him answer • 

16 . If I understand the question, is with 

17 relation, maybe, to the entrance? 

18 No. In other words,.you are moving apother 

19 highway over here approxir.iately e.j.ghty feet closer to their 

20 residence. Their residence stays stationery and is still 

21 at the same elevation. The.line Of sight up is going to 

23 

24 

25 

be In ·other words, their line of sight now from their 

house would be this, say, at this elevation, whereas, when 

you· move this· road over and granted, dropping it a foot or 

two-; their line of sight is going to be more like this. 
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2 It's going to be a greater angle. 

3 ~ Not necessarily. 

4 HR. ALTIZER: Your Ilonor, I think this would 

5 probably call for some sort of mathematical calculation • 
.. 

6 I think it would depend upon how far the new road will be 

7 below. I just don't think Mr. Canter can testify to that. 

8 I think it's going to take some kind of mathematical 

9 computation to determine the angle in a situation like 

10 that, and·I just don't think he's capable _of testifying 

11 to that. 

12 MR. COMBS: Your Honor 

13 THE COURT: He.may be. If he can answer it, he. can 

14 answer it, and if he can't, he can say so. 

15 A. Mr. Combs, as-l understand, the question is· 

16 woW.d the angle of sight increase because you are moving 

17 the road eighty foot eloser? 

'.18 Q.. Yes. 

19 A. And you are lowering the road. You would 

20 have to compute the angle, which we don't ·show on our 

21 plans wha.t' angle that would be. And the foot and a half 

22 low.er and that distance, how· that would change the angle. 

23 Q. From the centerof i;..."le. road, .. how far will it 

2-1 
be over to ~~e guardrail? 

?- ' _;, 
~ From the centerline of the proposed road? 
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2 Q.. The centerline of the proposed road over t:.o 

3 the guardrail .• 

A. ~pproximately twenty-two feet. 

5 Q. All right then. Beyond the guardrail, there 

6 ·will be, I suppose - - will it come a foot or two beyond 

·7 that .guardrail, then slope? 

8 
.. 

A. Ye-s. 
. I 

9. Q. And you are testifying from the toe or· 

10 bottom of this slope up to the elevation of the road is 

l1 · going ·to be twenty feet, is that correct? 

12 That is correct.· . In different areas. 

13 Right.•But you are saying at the maximum 

14 point, at the low point? 

15 Yes, sir. 

16. Now, also as I recall your direct testimony, 
. . 

17 you said that the fron.tage is approximately the same. 

18 Now, is it appr-:lximately less or is it going to be approxi-

19 mately more once the highway is put in, from the right of 

20 
way taken? 

21 
A. It would be a· few feet less due to the 

22 
Eastern property line on an angle. 

23 
Stand up in ~ront of the commission, so 

24 
. they can see what you. are speaking of. Now,. we. have .... 

established that t.~e existing frontage is five hundred 
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2 fi£ty feet; excuse me; five hundred forty feet. And I 

3 think you are saying because of the angle of the Eastern 

4 property line that it's going to end up that he is going to 

5 have less than that with t.."lis right of way? 

6 A. That is true. It would be t..l-ie difference 

7 in this angle here. If you came down straight; if this 

s property line were perpendicular to· the main line; it would 

9 be the same. But the property line is to the West. 

10 

11 

12· 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

')') ...... 

23 

25 

MR. COHBS: That's all the questions we have. 

The witness withdrew and resUI:".ed his seat at the 

table with counsel. 

JOSEPH GALLIHER :, .. : 

having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as 

follows:. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. ALTIZER: 

0. Would you state ~our.name, please? 

A. Joe Galliher. 

. - 0. . You do pronounce that Galliher? 

A. Galliher. 

. Q. Mr. Galliher, by whom are you E;IDployed? 

A. The_Virginia Oepa?=traent of Highways. 

0. In what capacity are you employed with the 

Virginia Department of Highways? 

I . . 
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A. In the Right of Way Department, acting. as an 

appraiser for the department. 

Q. What are your responsibilities in that 

position.? 

A. To place values on property necessary for 

. right of way acquisition for construction·. 

O. Mr.. Galliher, will. you state to the court 

and the commission your experience.and training in the 

field.of appraising real estate • 

···A. Well, I have been in the department about 

fourteen years. I've worked in the twelve counties of the 

Bristol District from Lee County to Wythe County, and 

Buchanan to .Grayson County. I've worked in Fr.edericksburg 

District. I've taken two courses given at the _University 

of Virginia at Charlottesville on appraising. And I have 

attended numerous courses given by the department. 

~ ?-tr. Galliher, did you appraise property 

that belonged to Mr. Calvin Cantrell and his wife, Edith 

Cantrell? 

A. Yes, I did. 

~ What was the date of that appraisal? 

A. November 17th,_ 1977. 

O. What was your .method of ~ppraising this 
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A. Well, our. standard procedure is to go into 

the area and seek out all possible land sales that we can 

find to use as a basis, an indicator, of value in the area. 

We are required to make up a brochure listing all of these 

sales, along with sketches, pictures, values, descriptions 

of the proper·ty, and they are kept on. file and used as a 

basis for our appraisalG 

~ How many sales are in that brochure? 

A.. I believe there is thirty-two; thirty-two 

properties that we collected information on. 

~ Then those sales are used as the basis of 

determining fair market value for this ·piece of property 

we are here today on, is that correct? 

A. Yes, sir, t.~at is correct. 

O. Before we actually get into the figures on· 

the appraisal, Mr •. ·Galliher, I would like to ask you a 

few questions about this property. The entire tract or 

parcel of land that 0e:orgs to.Mr. Cantrell and his wife, 

Edith Cantrell, how big a parcel is that property? 

A.. The· total property contains five point 

seventy-two acres. 

O. A1id how much of that property is being 

acquired by the highway? 

A. One poirit three acres. 
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Q. ·And that leaves - -

& It has a residue of four point forty-two. 

Q. Are there any improvements on the residue? 

& Yes, sir. There is a one~story brick dwelling 

wi.th a well and septic system. There is a building to the 

rear, which I. termed the dairy.. It is a two-story type 

structure. It has a block foundation with entry to the 

rear used as a dairy. Then on top of that is a frame 

structure which has entry from the back yard. I think it 

is used as a storage building. Then there is a storage 

building with an ~ttached overhanging shed to· the right 

rear of the dwelling and a frame barn to the extreme 

.right rear of the dwelling. 

·o. Are those all of the improvements that are 

on the property? 
.. 

A. Yes, ·Sir. 

0. Are there any im~rovements on the property 

that was acquired by the highway? 

A. No,· 
.. 

The portion of land necessary . sir • 

the right of way is vacant land. 

Q. Mr. Galliher, what is the existing road 

frontage on this particular tract of property? 

The road front.age is five hundred forty 

feet along Route 19. 
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2 Approximately what will be the road frontage 

3 now that the one point three acres has. been acquired by 

4 the Highway Department? 

5 A. I haven't scaled it here, but it would be 

6 just a matter of a few feet less, because·of the tapering 

· 7 lines, the sic:'le property lines of the property. But for all 

8 practical purposes, it's still arowid five hundred and 

9 forty feet. It would be a. small change. 

10 ~ So it would be a few feet less? 

11 A. Yes, sir. .· 

12 Mr. · Galliher, would you please give a 

13 description of the property in terms of its topography 

14 and how the property lies with relation to the highway? 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

·21 

22 

23 

24 

A. Well,· the property along the frontage near 

the entry has a deep depression approximately thirty 

feet - - twenty-five or thirty feet below the existing 

road. Then along the frontage toward the Western end of 

the property, it rises into the rock up and then the center 

portion of the property is generally ·.rolling where Mr. 

Cantrell's house is located, then the property drops to 

the rear where· the barn is located on the right rear 

portion of the property. 

The proposed right of way line, how does 

that compare with the cuts arid fills, with the existing 
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2 cuts and fills, on the existing right of way line? 

3 Well, the toe of the fill, or the new lane? 

4 Yes. 

5 A. Well, the fills will change a little bit. 

6 The fills and cuts will change a little bit due partly 

7 to the change in elevation of the centerline of the new 

8 lane. The centerline of the·new lane will be slightly 

9 
: 

lower than the existing lane in front of the dw·elling. 

10 This is approximately a foot and a half. As you move on 

11 down 19 to the West, this will increase to about three feet 

12 

13 

l.4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

22. 

23 

25 I 

lower than the.existing lane. This will cause, on the 

·western end of the property, the cut along the front of 

the property to be somewhat less, approximately eight to 

ten feet less, than·it is now •. In front of the dwelling, 

the fill will be approximately a foot and a ~J.alf less due 

to this change in the centerline elevation. 

Mr. Galliher, what means of entrance does Mr. 

Cantrell. have presently onto the property? 

He has a gravel driveway which is located on 

a forty foot right of way which is jointly used by he and 

his neighbor.·This entry was, I think, granted and came 
. 

off of the Rasnick property, or.this entrance was retained 

by the P..asnicks.and is jointly· used by Mr. Cantrell and, 

I think, Mr. Nichols. 
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2 Do you know what·the grade of that existing 

3 entrance is? 

4 A. The grade of the existing entrance is a 

5 ten percent gra:de. 

6 Q. ·Okay. Would you explain to the commission 

7. what a ten percent grade is. 

8 Well, a ten percent grade is based on a 

9 distance of a hundred feet. If you would take a tape 

10 measure and stretch it one hundred ·feet, ·then at the ·end 

11 of that one hundred·foot distance, reach an elevation or 

12 raise an elevation of ten feet, then that slope· would 

13 be a ten percent grade. 

14 Okay. Does ·that.mean that the property - -

15 does that mean if you had a hun<ired. feet:; from one end of 

16 the hundred feet to the other end of the. hundred feet, 

17 that would rise at a rate of ten feet over that one hundred 

18 feet?. Is that what you are .saying? 

19 A. Yes, sir. That's right. In other words, 

20 it would be a triangle with a flat pl~e, then ten feet 

21 on· tl1e end and back to the zero. point of the triangle, 

22 and that would. give you a .ten percent grade. 

23 Now,. is Mr. Cantrell's a negative or a 

2-1 positive grade? 

25 
. A. This· is a minus ten percent grade on the 

808 V. BRANSON 
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2 existing entrance, which means you are leaving a level 

3 plane and dropping downhill. 

4. Q. So negative means you are going downhill? 

... 5 Yes, ·sir. A. •• £· ... .,. 

6 0. It is ten _percent. What would the entrance 

7 be of the new ;-ight of way entrance coming into Mr. 

8 .Cantrell's property? 

9 A. The new entrance is an eight point six per-

10 cen.t, which is less grade than the existing entrance. 

11 This is caused by the change in elevation of the new lane .. 

12 Q. Okay. Now, will.this· new entrance be located 

13. in the same place as the existing entrance into Mr. Cant-

14 rell' s proper.ty? 

15 A. Yes, it is. The entrance will be replaced in -· 
16 its exact location. 

17 . O. Do you have any information as to width of 

18 the present entrance in to Mr. Cantrell's property? 

19 A. No, sfr. I would just have to estimate 

20 the width. That's somewhere around eighteen feet. 

. 21 Q. And do you know what. the entrance will be 

')'> _ ... that the highway is putting in ·for him? 

23 A. Yes, sir. Our entrances for residential 

2-1 dwellings like that are a standard twelve foot width. 

;,-_;:i 
O. Are there any other, any additional entrances 
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2 into Mr. Cantrell's property at this time? 

3 A. No, sir. That is the only entrance.at the 

4 J?resent time. 

5 I 
-·· I 

I 

O. Is the highway contemplating putting in any 

6 :1 
' 

additional entrances into his property? 

7 A. Yes, 'sir. They have shown another entrance 

8 to be constructed to the right of the dwelling. · This will 

9 be on the other side of the fence there adjacent to the 

10 dwelling and would give access to that fenced ·field next 

11 to the dwelling. 

12. Q. And what would the grade be on that partic-

13 ular entrance? 
/ 

14 A. This would be a minus thirteen point eight 

15 percent. In other words, minW3 meaning that it will be 

16 sloping downhill from the road. 

17 Q. And what would t.lie width of that entrance 

18 be? 

19' A. It will also be a standard twelve-foot 

20 width. 

·21 Q. I-tr. Galliht?r, . you have al.ready testified 

22 as to yqur methodof appraising this property and the fact 

23 

. . 
that you did appraise this pro~rty on.November 17th, 1977. 

24 
Using this preparative method .of· appraising, did you:,_ .in 

25 
fact, determine a fair market.value of the property on 
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that date? 

~ Yes, sir, I did. 

Q. Could you relate to the commission what that 

:app.raisal was? 

~ The one point three acres, I placed a value o: 

s~ven tho~sand twe~ty dollars for one point three acres • 

' 
1 

• • Also, there is fencing along the property frontage, a wire-

type fencing, ~at I made an allowance of five hundred and 

twelve dollars to replace that fencing after construction. 

This gives a sum t<?tal of seventy-five. htmdred thirty-two 

dollars.for the property involved. 

Q. Mr. Galliher, the seven thousand twenty 

-dollars for the one point three acres, could you tr.anslate 

that into a dollar per acre value for the commission? 

A. Yes, sir. This represents fifty-four htmdred 
•.'. -

dollars per 
.-

acre. 

Q. Mr •. Galliher, what ·possible purposes could 

this property be used for? 

A.- Well~· I consider that the highest and best 

use, which· is the way that· we are required to appraise the 

properties, is to give these landowners the benefit of any 

doubt and appraise the highest. and best use. In my 

opinion, the property could be best used for residential 

usage. There seems to be a tendency in the ar.ea there 
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2 
for property from Claypool Hill West is primarily resi-

3 
dential. Around the C1aypool Hiil intersection, th~re is 

4 
quite a bit of commercial usage, but the predominant 

5 use is for r.esidential purposes down on this area. 

6 . Q. ·Okay •. , Mr. Ga·lliher, what effect would the 

residence o·f Mr. Cantrell be in regard to the· use of this 
. 8 

property? 

9 ~- Well, the residence would determine partially 

10 the use of it. If you would consider the use other than as 

11 a commercial establishment, then anything·placed on the 

12 property in front of the residence would have a· detrimental 

13 effect, in my opinion, on the residence. Therefore, I feel 

14 the proper .us.e for this property is for residential pur-

15 poses. Another reason here I have chosen-. this usage is the 

16 sales in that area would indicate residential usage. The 

17 amount of the sale and the use of the properties that's bee '" 

18 sold down there. 

19 Q. Mr.·Gfllliher, is there any damage to the 

·20 residue?' 

-21 No, sir. I do not fee1 that the property has 

22 suffered mone·tarily in any manner as a result of the con-

23 struction. The nearest right of way line to this dwelling 

24 is a:. hundred and ten feet and ·the foot of ·the fill will be 

25 approxi;:-.atelyone h1mdred forty-five foot away from the. 
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dwelling. This·far exceeds a distance that most dwellings 

in any of the new or higher class subdivisions - - it's 

farther back than most of these new dwellings. 

MR.. ALTIZER: No further questions. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR.. CHAMBERS : 

O. Mr. Galliher, whenever someone wants to get 

on Mr. Cantrell's property, if they would want to now, the 

only reasonable access would be from the East end, is. that 
.. '• .. ~ 

right? - .. '. ... 
-

A. Yes, . That would"be the best access •. sir. 
. 

.. g; Would it be fair to say that Mr. Cantre:J_·l 

would have a lot of' privacy on the Western portion of his 

property the way it is situated now? .. .. 
: 

A. I suppose he would. 
. :t , .. 

-
0. Now, you say the State Highway Department. 

-is going to construct a new access· road from Route 19-460. 

~take it that anybody that·wants to can. use that access 

road right up to Mr.· Cantrell's property line on the West 

side, is that right? 

~ No,. sir. We are not building any access 

road. The only thing on the West end of the property, it . 

is giving him a private entry' to_ that tract of land. 

O. Look at your plans. I notice a road coming 
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perpendicularly from the Eastbound lane to Route 19-460, 

and I may not have used the proper nomenclature when I 

said access., but it appears to me you are giving him access 

to the new road at that point. correct me if I am wrong. 

A. I don't follow you. There is jus.t the two 

entries :into the property. 

MR. ALTI'ZER: It may be.useful. to give the comm.is-

sion.a copy of this map. I think there are two copies 

in the Court's file. It may be pointed out on that map 

whatever - -

~ From testimony, I gather that this property 

·is rather secl.uded here now from the encroachments of 

peopl.e coming off of .19-460, is that correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

-· O. And there is one really satisfactory 

entrance or access or whateveryouwant to call it right 

here at the East end, is that correct? 

A. That is correct,· sir. 

Q; Now., ·you say that the State Highway 

Department. is going to build what I call an access road 

from the Eastbound lane of 19-460 over to his ~roperty 

lines after this is done, is that right? 

A. Yes, sir.· 

Q. And anybody that wants to can use this road 
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2 up to his property line? 

3 Well, up tp the right of way line, yes, sir. A. 

4 Well, up to his property.. To what right of Q. 

5 way line? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

10 line then and drive up there anytime of night or day? 

11 ·A. (No response.) 

-
12 

This is not a limited acceps highway, is 

13 that· right? 

14 A. No, sir, it's not. 

15 
o~ay._ So there will be two ways that 

16 
people can get off of new Route 19-460 onto Mr. Cantrell's 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

·property? 

This new entry is for Mr. Cantrell's use, 

just as are all entries. He can fence it: put a gate 
. 

across it. If he would like, this entry could be 

eliminated if he doesn't want it. 

whatsoever. 

It can be eliminated? 

Oh, yes, sir. That would-cause no difficuitY 1 

Purely at his request? 
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2 A. Yes, sir, I'm sure it would be eliminated. 

3 Q. Now, you testified you improved the grade 

4· of his exis.ting entrance by two percent at>proximately? 

5 A. Yes, siz:. 

·6 .·And that this is at the cost of moving the 

1' roa'd eighty feet clo·ser, though, a.z:en't you? 

8' A.' That is correct. 

9 That happens to be a by-product of moving 

IO · the road closer to. him, doesn't it? 

11 A. Yes,. sir, tr.~4:- is true •. 

12 In your search for.sales of- residential 

13 property, or·sales of acreage in the Claypool. Hill area; 

14 ·and by the area., I will try to use a radius .of a couple 

15 of miles ttaybe from Claypool Hill; ·did ~ur search reveal' 

16 any sales of less than seven thousand dollars an acre? 

17. Yes, sir. I can specify some here, if you 

18 woul.d like. There is the property I· gave consideration to 

19 sold by Mr. Willie Askew: I was involved there; to St. 

20 Benedicts. This joins the Community College property. 

21 It. is an eleven· point eight acre tract. . It sold for 

22 forty-two· hundred.ten dollars per acre. 

23 

24. A. 

Is that where.the mental health center is? 

Yes, sir. 

Do you know the circumstances of .that sale? 
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A. Well, t...~e sale was. verified with the St. 

Benedict's Corporation and as I understand it, it was an 

arms length sale. 

O. Did yo:u make any inquiry of the last tenant 

who had an interest in that property as to the circum-

stances . surrou.i.""lding th<;tt sale·? 

A. .Like I say., we contacted- -. -
0. You contacted the buyers? 

A. Yes, sir. 
•._ 

Q. Just the buyers? .. 

A. Yes, sir. ~ ... 
. .. 

0. Did you contact the sellers? 
. 

.. 
A.. No, sir. We contact one or the other to 

" 

check.· . ~·.·.a •'', 

'• .... . . 
0. How can you tell it's a fair and arms length 

>' .. 
tra·nsaction unless you talk to both people? 

A. Well, we make a practice of contacting 

either th.at we can get in touch with, and this: was done. 

It was stated this was an arms length·transaction, so we 

had to accept it as that. 

O. How much road frontage was involved? 

A. Somewhere-around a hundred feet. 

Q. •· As a matter of fact, it was about ninety 

feet, wasn't it? 
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2 A. Ninety. Yes, sir, that's correct. Now, you 

3 asked for other sales. I have a sale from John Baylor to 

4. John ~atliff, fifteen point eleven acres at thirty-three 

5·· hundred thirteen dollars an acre. This property is located 

6 t1est of the Wardell intersection on the righthand side 

7' :down there. Some of Mr. Baylor's property. Also, I have 

·8 another sale - -

9 How many acres was that? 

10 A. Fifteen point eleven. 

11 Was it improved any? 

12 A. Uo 1 sir. Vacant land.· 
.. 

13 Pretty near a hillside, isn't it? 

14 A. It's steep land. 

15 Okay •. 

16 Adj'7stments were made in my appraisal to 

17 compensation for the steepness of the property. Also, 

18 there was another property there Mr. Baylor sold. to 

19 Charles E. Davis. This was an eight-acre tract. It sold fo• 

20 fifty-nine hundred thirty-eight dollars~ This piece of 

21 property lies on - - it's visible from Route 19. It is 

-22 adjacent to this property that I was just talking about. 

23 

24 

25 

It fronts on Route 770. 770 leaves the old Wardell Ham · 

House and goes under 19 and sort of makes a loop in there 

and there is a rrodern residence on the property at the 
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present time. That J;>iece of property was considered. 

Q. Is that the· one where the house is on top of 

a knoll? 

A. On top of a knoll. It's a beautiful 

re·sidential site there. 

0. It has·the,-~ppearance of the exterior being 

,made of wood? ... 
,. 

A. Yes, sir,·that's right. 
-

0. How much did the fellow pay for that house .. 
. •. . . . . 

s,ite? ' .. 

A. This property sold at the rate of fifty-nine 

hundred and thirty-eight dollars per--acre. Forty-seven 

· · :thousan.d and five hundred for the eight acres. 

l ' 

·o. There .is no other houses that have been 

built on there, are there? 

A. No., sir. It •·s. a single site. 

Q. All right. Was there any road frontage on 

u. s. Route 19? 

A. No, sir·. It doesn't front on 19. The 

frontage- is on Route 770, as I: stated. Now,· the last 

property that I considered here. was the Rasnicks sold a 

piece of property through a Special Commissioner to 

Jack Randall Keen and Randall Donald Burke.· This property 

is loca.ted with.in sight of the Cantrell property, right. 
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on the West end of their property. There is a .little 

road that turns off right beside of the Roisch's house, 

and the property is located adjacent to the Roisch's down 

there. It is a 7.7 acre tract that sold for thirty-four 

.thousand nine hundred sixty dollars, or forty-five hundred 

dollars per acre. now, this piece of property very 

favorably compares with the .. Cantrell property and the 

terrain, especially along the frontage •. There is a 

depression on the lefthand of the property. It comes to 

road grade and entry in to it is practically identical to 

the Cantrells, except ·rather tha.."l being downgrade entry 

it is a slight upgrade entry. The terrain of. the property 

·favorably compares with the Cantrells. 

~ When was that sale? 

-· A. This was in July of 1975. 

~ Almost three years prior to the take here? 

A. Yes. That•-s correct. And on sales that have 
. . 

a year or two lapse like that, th.ey are corrected, and 

added to, to bring them up to present day market value 

as of the date of the evaluation. 

~- How much road frontage was on that tract? 

A. Two hundred fifty.-eight point four feet. 

~ Do you know t.~e circumstances of that sale? 

A. There again, .we checked with the purchasers 
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and with .Mrs. Roisch and we were assureu that this was a 

market value arm's length transaction. 

Q. You say, we? ., 

A. Mr. Jack Barrow ·and. myself. 

0. Mrs. Ra·snick. is an invalid? 

:A. Yes. .. 

Q. - And that's -the only upkeep.she has, is from 

the sale of her property? 

A. Well,. I'm not acquainted with all of her 

financial aspects, but we talked to Mrs. Reisch, who is 

her daughter, and obtained this information. 

' 0. You did learn that her mother bedfast? was ., 

A. Yes. : 

Q. And had been for many years? 
..;;r.. 

A. Yes, I'm aware of ·that. 

Q. And has no hope o.f ·ever being otherwise? 

A. Yes. 
~ 

0. And that was her only income, the sale of 

property like this? 

A. Like I say, I don't know. 

Q.. Was some property sold on the North side 

of the road within a quarter of a mile or a half a mile of 

the subject property in this case near where an apartment 

building was built by somebody? 
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2 A.. I can't place the one you are referring to. 

3 Are you talking about the property that Underground Energy 

4 purchased? 

5 A. No. Property East of where Underground 

6 Energy bought. 

7 A. . Yes, .sir, there was a lot •. I know ·what 

8 you are . speaking .. of now. 

9· O. Have you got that sale? 

10 
A. I am not sure. This was sold after I 

11 
completed my work and Mr. Barrow has put it in the 

brochure. I am not that familiar with it. 
l~ 

13 
·o. Do you"have it in the brochure? It was 

a sale from John A. and Katherine M. Warren. 
14 

15 
A. ·Sold to -

~ 

_o. Jason Shortt and Nancy. 
16 

A. No, sir, I don't believe :I have that. 
17 

0. It was sold on July 28th, 1977, shortly 
18 

before the take in this case. 
19 

20 I 
I 

A. No, sir, I don't have that. 

I 
!1 
I 

O. Two hundred foot front on Highway 19 
21 :1 

!1 I averaging about· two htL"ldred for.ty feet deep. One point. 
2~ 

fifteen acres. · 
23 

A. This i's getting considerably closer to 
2-! 

Claypool Hill, too, isn't it? 
25. 
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O. Perhaps a quarter of a mile. Does that make 

a lot of difference? Does that make as much difference as 

going to the Cotrnnunity College from there? 

A. Well, I.feel. that the Claypool Hill inter-

section is definitely a different usage. 

O. · You testified on direct examination; I 

.believe I can quote verbatim; that you; by you, I mean 

the Highway Department, not you personally; seek out all 

comparable, possible comparable, sales. Now, here is ·one 

sale that wasn't sought out, isn't that right? 

A. I don't see it listed here. Like I said, 

I worked there for a period of time. And Mr. Barrow, he 

was aware of the sale and told me about it. There were 

some conditions there; we didn't put.it in the brochure, 

and I'm not sure what the situation was. I remember him 

mentioning it. As a matter of fact, we came through there 

the other day and he mentioned it. 

O. Let me suggest one of the conditions might 

have been it was a seventeen thousand four hundred doliar 

per acre tract. 

MR. HART: We object to that until they put in 

some evidence of it, Your Honor. 

MR. CH.AMBERS: We will have the evidence. 

THE COURT: If you vouch you can tie it in •. 

BOB V. BRANSON 
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2 No, sir. Like I say, the values of these 

3 sales: were used as a basis and whether it's high or 

4 whether it's low is of no consequence to us. We have to 

5 use what is there. 

6 I don'·t want to argue with you, Mr. Galliher, 

7 but if there is a reason, you know, this corranission should 

8 know why this sale wasn • t considered and I want to elicit 

9 that from YOU if it IS at ail pOSSible, because it iS 

10 fairly close to the property whi~ has been taken and it 

11 did com..~and a price of over seventeen thousand dollars an 

12 acre and I simply want to find out ~rom you why ·you didn't 

13 consider it. I'm sure you have good reasons for it. 

14 A.. I have no ·knowledge of why it wasn't put 

15 .in here, frankly, to tell you the truth. 

16 - 0. Now, you nientioned a sale, or you mentioned 

17 a moment ago trying to help me find out where Underground 

18 Energy Corporation is? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A. Yes, sir. 

Where is that property? 

A. It is direct1y across from where the 

Pondel;'osa used to set and where it is placed a't the 

present time. 

How much property was involved in that sale? 

This property wa~ sold by.John T. Stevenson 
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to Underground Energy Corporation for fifty thousand 

dollars, involving two point seven acres., which gives a 

value of eighteen thousand, five hundred and nineteen 

·dollars per acre. On this sa1e, I can give you very 

explicit reasons for not using·· this particular sale. 

~ Let me ask you a preliminary question or 

two before you do, then I will certainly elicit your 

reasons. Did you ascertain from the purchaser in this 

case that the recited consideration was the actual 

consideration? ·. 

A. Yes, sir. The consideration was checked. 

John T. Stevenson gave us the amount of the sale. 
. . 

~ You checke.d with the seller then? 

A.· Yes. 

~ Did you check with the buyer? 

A. no, sir. 

~ How do you determine whether you check with 

the.buyer or with the seller? Is it just who you can find 

the easiest? 

A. Well, whoever we can locate related to -the 

sale, yes, sir. 

~ Qnce you have checked with one, do you ever 

check with the o~"ler side of. the trade? 

~ We have no reason for doubting people's word. 
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~ Okay. Now, was it necessary to do anything 

to this land to make it adaptable for any kind of human 

use,. either conur.ercial or residential? 

A. There wa~ some grading done on the property. 

~ Do you know how much that grading cost? 

·A. Ho, sir, l: don't.know. 

~ Would thathave anything to do with the final 

value of the property. Would that have an effect in your 

mind on why somebody would pay you more or less than fifty 

thousand dollars for it? 

A. Let me have your question again, please. 

~ Well, would it.make a difference to you when 

somebody is paying ·fifty thousand dollars for a piece of 

property whether they have to excavate it; grade it, hau1 

in dirt to fill it, drain it, ditch it or do something 

like that? ·; 

Yes, sir. It would have an effect on the 

value of the property, on the cost-of the property, without 

a doubt. But consider that Underground Ener~ purchased 

the restaurant· and the fact that they could not move it in 

either direction up Route .19, and the only place they could 

move it was directly across the road and that they were 

under.stress if they were going to move it to purchase this 

·property. They had to pay anything that was asked to get 

BOB V. BRANSON··. ·· 
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this property in order to place the restaurant on it. 

~ Row much did they pay for the restaurant? 

A. I don't know. 

~ What kind of stress is that gping to put on 

them if you don't know what they paid them for the 

restaurant? Do you k!1.0W whether they paid two thousand or 

five thousand or what for that restaurant? 

A..· No, sir, I don't know. But the whole thing 

is, if they were going to buy the restaurant and going to 

move it, this was the only location they could move it to. 

~ All right. 'Are you telling this commission 

that Underground Energy bought the Ponderosa Restaurant 

for whatever they paid for it not knowing that they could 
·. , 

move it across the road onto t.h,is piece of land? Are you 

telling this commission here that you know that Undergrowid 

Energy Corporation bought ~~at restaurant not knowing that 

they could move it across th~ r9ad? 

A. No, sir. I am sure they were aware that they 

could move it across the road. .·.· 

a piece of ~roperty to r...ove that restaurant to. They 
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2 didn't have to buy the restaurant, did they? 

3 No, sir. But. if t.liey thought it was a good 

4 invest..""1ent, they ·would buy property paying extra for it 

5 in order to put the restaurant on it. 

6 All right. But they weren't under any kind 

7 of stress about finding a place to move the restaurant 

8 that they had bought: and by, they, I mean Underground 

9 Energy Corporation? 

10 No, sir. If they ~anted to speculate on 

11 the purchase of tb.e restaurant, the piece of land that. 

12 they purchased was the only one that they coul.d place it 

13 

. 14·-

15 

16 

17 

·.18 

19. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

. . · ... 

on. ... ... 

_.. 

0. But they· didn't have to purchase it, did 

they? ·~-· 
•. 

.. 

A.:. . No, sir • 
.. ' 

0. And they didn't have to lose the re$taurant 

because they weren't going to purchase it •. They didn't 

have a restaurant at that time? 

I'm sure they coordinated the who.le thing, 

.Mr. Char.iber s • 

Is that the only·reason that you woul.d not 

consider .~e Ondergrou.-id Energy sale? 

That is the primary reasq:i that they paid 

more in r.arkct value to obtain the piece of property and 
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speculation on moving the restaurant. 

0. Well, what is market value for that piece 
.. .· . .. ···.··· 

of property? .. -,;•. ., . . ... . . .... . 

' 

A. Market value is value determined by the 

preponderance of sales and uses in the area. 

O. Isn't there a better definition than that 

of market value, Mr. Galliher? Isn't the price of property 

established by a willing seller? 

... • • i .. ·: ·.•: !. 

And a willing buyer~ 
-

•h -

And a willing bll'Jer. -
.. ··. ; .. - . 

.. -... . 
Yes, sir. 

... .. 
--~. 

_., .. .: .. " 

O. And in that case, in the. Underground Energy 

. 

property? 

Mr. chamb~rs, one· high-sale doesn't make 

the market. The preponderan.ce of sales ~kes the market. 

O. I'm asking you what the market value on the 

Underground Energy property·was? Wasn't it established 

in that.very sale? 

lto, sir • 

It wasn't? 

A. No,. sir. 
. 

O. What kept it from being established in that 

sale? 

A. 
.. 

Because the preponderance cf the sales in 

808 V. S~ANSOf\j 
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2 the area were for residential purposes in the v·icini ty 

3 of .five !:housand dollars per acre. 

4 ~ No matter what somebody else paid for 

5 property? 

6 ~- Uo matter what ~;.ese people paid for that 

. 7 _particular property • 

8 O. Do I. understand your testimony to be based 

9 
.. . on a market value which is established by something other 

.. 

10 than a price established by a willing buyer purchasing 

. 11 from a willi..""lg seller, neither of whom is und~r a com-

12 pulsion to enter into the tran~a~r.ion? 
. 
-

13· 
. . A. That is exactly what my value is based on • 

14 · The four sales that I listed were considered in my 

15 appraisal. These sales were ann's length transactions -· - ' -. 
16 between willing sellers· and ~illing buyers and fit all.of 

. 
~ . 17 the requirer.ents as·market value sales. I had four of 

18 these sales·that I based~ appraisal on, rather than just 

. 19 one sale under wiusual conditions. 

,, . 20 What w~s unusual about the sale of the 

21 property from Katherine ?-IcGlothlin Warren and her husband 
. . to Jason Shortt and York Lindsey? .,.., .. 

...... ,. . 
A. Let me look here. There are some sales . 

23 . 
24 

here that haven't been· incexe?d •. I might have that sale·. 

I I~athe.rine !-1. and John A. Warren to Jason Shortt and .York I 

.,- :1 . 
-<> . 

I 

. . 
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. 
Lindsay, North. side, nineteen thousand -feet West of . 

19-460 intersection at Cl"'ypool Hill• I one point fi-Fteen 

acres. at seventeen thousand, three hundred ninety-one 

dollars an acre. Yes, sir, I do have that sale. It's 

been put.in since I worked. on the project. 
J 

Q. .T.e.ll us, if y_ou .know, what is peculiar 

about it as far as you are concerned • 

1\. I'm not familiar with that· one. I didn't 

verify the sale or talk with the purchaser·or owner. 

· Q. Is that the closest sale in point of time? 

~ This sale was in:July of '77. 

O. ·Is thai the closest one in point of time.to 

Nove."1".ber of '77? 

I don•.t;know. I don't remember the dates on ..... ..... 
these· others. Let's see. The Charles Davis sale that X 

used was in '75 and was brought up to co~~ensate for time. 

The St. Benedict sale was a recent sale. I think it was 

in '76. It was in June of '76~ 
r 

0. Wasn't it a special purpose sale for special 

use? ·. 

. 1\. Yes, sir • 

Q. Wasn't that purchased by the Cumberland 

Plateau ~-!ental Eealth Planning Cor:-cission, .or something 

like th.at, for i:..~e establish.I:ent c;>f a mental health center? 
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A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Do you cu.11 that sale to . ba wcrtJiy of_ 

comparison with. sales between people interested in resi-

dential and co.·lm-iercial property by and large up and down 

the highway? 

A. Well, the ~'Ung tJiat struck me about it, 

Mr. Chambers, was the amount, because usually a concern 

like this has to pay outrageous sums for property they 

purchase. A State and Federal agency, usually, such as 

this, has to P"Y above market price to obtain a location. 

Q. .Why woul.d that be? 
~ ·:. 

. , . 
A. It seems that the public·thinks they've 

got mo.ney to t..~row away. 
·.·;. : . . · ·: . 

.. 
. -. 

. :: . ~. ;:.- ; -~ 

.. 
O. Why would they pay it? You can establish ... 

market value, can't you? . ·:.. ·. ··: ~.:.~ •. _; 

A. 1· don't know. It just seer.is to happen. 

I can't say why, but.it does. s~em to happen. 

. O. Jl..J.l. right. Let me ask you about one other· 

sale, m:>ving a little farther a1!.laY from the community 

College, it looked like. I as~ed you about a sale to 

Jason Shortt by G. w. Dalton and somebody else on the 

East side· of Claypool Hill, approximately a mile or so, or 

a half i:d.le, maybe• A lot, appro:d.r~tely three quarters 

of an acre on the South side ·of-Route 19-460, that required 
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right much filling before this area was uscable. I believe 

the seller was a gentleman by the name of Dalton and the 

buyer was a fellow by the ncime of Shortt? 

A. Seventy-nine hundreths of an acre? 

That sounds right, yes, sir. 

A." It sold for twenty-one thousand dollars. 

Three quarters of an acre for twenty-one 

thoUSa..Tld? -... . ... 

A. Yes. .. 
.... 

.. ' 
When was that sale? . ·-· . . :-· . ... ~ . .. . : . . . 

A. This was in October of • 77-·. .. 

-· . 
. 0. That's right nigh onto about the same time 

.. 

that the State took the Cantrell property? 

A. That's pretty close. 

. 0. All right. Did you all consider that sale? 

A. No, sir. I didn't consider that sale. 
-. .. 

0. What w~s wron9 with it? 

A. I did.Tl' t feel that it compared with the 

.Property in the area we were working down there and the 

subject property. 
- . ;. 

O. Did you know about it? 

··A. Yes, sir. 

Wily did you know about it and not know. 

about· t."le one in July of • 76 near the subject property? 

eoe v. 3~ANSON 
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2 
A. Well, I was aware of this ·other sale, the 

3 
one you are talking about. 

- 4 ,. .. .. 
0. You were? ·'- - -~ -··:· . - .. 

' 
5 

A. But there again, I just don't think it's 

·s 
a good comparison •. 

. 
7 O. ~ou never did tell us why you don't think 

8 it compares. 
-- 9. O. I think it's influenced by the commercial 

.. 

·10 use of the property there around Claypool Hill. I don't 

11 think that the property compar~s with the residential 

12 uses down there in the area where the C~trell property 

13 is located • 
.. .r 

14.. What makes you think,it.is influenced PY 

- 15 - this myste·rious force of Claypool Hill, other than its 
. ~ .. 

is price? .. I 

17 A. Well, there has been C:cnsiderable specula-
. 

18 t.ion·and investl!'.ent of apparent excess funds there in the 

19 Cla~--pool Hill area for business ventures. There was 

~o -supposedly a Piggly-Wiggly or some market coming in up· 

21 ! 

I 
the.re and t.1-iere has been a· lot of finagling of property 

- ' 

22 there.in t..'le Claypool-Rill area, and I don't t;.hink that 

23· .. this would apply to the area we are working with there 

24: where the Cantrell. property is located. 

..,-. - .. a . Were t..~~se no~ .willing sellers and willing 

! 

·I 
.-· . ·---· ..... r .·--· ~- .... -·· ... . ..... - . ... .. '::::·:-· --~ ·--· ·~- -
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. 
_buyers involved, for instance, in the Warren and Jason 

Shortt sale? 

So far as I know, they probably were. 
. . 

But you say even though they are willing 
. 

sellers and \·1illing buyers, something taints these trans-

·actions? 

A I think they are influenced by possible 

commercial uses. 

g. Did you check with ther~ and ask· them that? 

A Mr. Barrow did. I didn't verify these 

particular sales. As I said, he did most: of the sales work 

in the area. •. ,. 

O. Re's not with us today, is he? 

No, sir. 

· .... ,. . 
. .·· 

..... -

. MR. CHAHBERS: We don't have anything further, 

Your Honor. 

REDIRECT EXAMIWATION 

BY l-!R. P..LTIZER: 

O. .Mr. Galliher, do you have some pictures 

t.liat were taken of th.is property? 

Yes-, sir, I do. · 

O. Did you take these pictures? 

~ Yes, I did. 

Q.. When Yere these pictures taJcen? 
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A. In January of '77. 

Q. Do those pictures accurately depict t...~e 
. . 

property at the ti~e that they were taken? -
. .. 

.. . . . 

A. Yes, sir, t...~ey do. .· .. 

. 
MR. ALTIZER: We would like to off er these. 

MR. CH.t1:-1BEI<S : Hay I see them? 

Q. Let' s take ·t...liem one by one. Would you explain 

this picture? 

A. · This is a picture taken from the Cantrell 

entrance looking Westward •. It shows the edge of the cut 

adjacent to th.e existing Route· .19 and a !?loping_ hillside 

and I ·don't believe b..tie right of way stakes were in place 

at the time, but this is the. ~·1esterri end o! the property 

as you ·are looking down toward the Rasnic.."t: property. ·· .... 
~-· 

.. Q. That• s looking Wes-t? 

Looking West. -.-.·~-·· .... ·:- . 

MR. ALTIZER: I would. like to move to introduce 

this, Your Honor. 

MR. cm.ms: Your Honor, the only thi.."lg I would 

have to say about it is somebody has marked wi t.."1. an ink 

pen on it. I don't know why. ·.They might have .been trying 

to establish the property line, but I don't think it•s 

an accu=ate location of it based on filY observation of the 

property. nut I would li:<e. for it to be introduced with-

BOB Y. BRANS.0:'11 .. 
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2 out any reference to that line. 
.. .• 

3 THE COO~T: All right. 

4 WITNESS: The mark is purely accidental by myself. 

5 It doe!ln It relate to the right of '\·ray or anything whatso-

6 ever. 

.. 7. O. Mr. Galliher, look at this picture and 

8 explain it to the comnission •. ··. ·: 

. !· 

9 A. This was taken from property L'"l t.;,e same 

10 location. The entry to the property i...'"l it faces to the ..... 

11 Northwest and depicts the fill bank of existing Route 19 

12 
-: .·· along the property frontage. .. 

13 I·m. ALTIZER: ·I would like to introduce this. 

14 THE COURT: '!'hat will. be Highway Commissioner Ex-

15 ._ 
hil>i t Ho. 2 then. 

-~ . 

16 0,. . ?'1r. Galliher, z'thiiik you have already 

17 testified your brochure includes thirty-two sales? 

·1s Yes, sir. 

19 Q. And of those thirty-two sal.es, is it· 

20 
accurate to say SOEe of those sales are considered and 

21 others are not? . 
.. 

2"2 
A. Yes. 

23 
MR. CEAl-raERS : 1i·le· object, Your Honor, to the 

24 
question sayL~g, is it acc'..lrate to say.~· We think that·-

25 
THE COURT: r sustain tha objection. 

SOS V. SP.:ANSON ... 
COU1'1T q€.PC~":'~" 
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Mr. Galliher, were all thirty-two of those 

sales used?· 
. 

No, sir. Not all of the particular sales 

could be favorably compared to the property. 

~ Why are some sales used and others not? 

A Well, some are used because they more closely 

compare to the property than others. For example, if you've 

got a group of sales of commercial property, which is what 

we are dealing with at Claypool Hill. If I were appraising 

property at Claypool Hill, I would use the commercial sales. 
, 

And if I am appraising residential~prope~ty, I get sales 
. 

that as closely compare to the residential proper·ty as I 

can. 

Okay. __ The Ca.~trell property, what did you 

consider to be the highest and' best use for that·property? 

A I felt the property could be best used for 

what it is being used for, as a residence • 
, 

~ These pieces of property that Mr. Chambers 

has ~ace· reference to, are they residential, or are they 

commercial? 

I think t..11.ere is soc.e degree of speculation 

on these properties for conr.~rcial usage. 

~- So if you are comparing coCI:Iercial and 

residential, that's like co~paring apple and orange, is 

BOS V. 9R"'NSON 

A~..,-~ 9 SQ• &!I 
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that correct? 

MR. CHJ\1.IDERS: \·le object to leading questions, Your 

Honor. 

THE COURT: Sustained. 

~ What other factors are used by you as an 

appraiser in comparing the property? 

Well, of course, your terrain, which the one 

piece of property there near the Roisch's just within sight 

of this property very favorably compares in terrain and size 

and frontage and so forth. It doesn't have quite the 
, 

~rontage that - - In relation to the·a~r~age, it has 

plenty of frontage. Thi.s is all given consideraton. The 

prope~ty that Mr. Baylor sold to Charles Davi$ has favorabl 1 

terrain. It compares very well to·· this particular piece 

of property • 
. :.: . 

~ - .. ~- .. 
~ • .. 

Is location a factor? .. .. . 
.. 

A. Location is definitely a factor and the 
-

location of the property in a residential area, predom-

inantly residential area, as compared to a predominantly 

co~~ercial area, is given definite consideration. 

Is ti.r:te a factor? 

A. Yes, sir. All sales that have any time 

lapse, such as the 1 76 sales and so fo~th, they are 

adjusted according to inforr:-.ation given us, given me in 

BOB V. BRANSON · 
C~\.i'RT t.Er>'=~;,R 

RO•JT£ a ao .. i;~ 
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II 

2 particular, by some of the lending institutions in the · 

3 area. I contacted some of ~~e banks, different individuals 

4· that loan money, and determined that fifteen percent per 

5 year was a fair factor to use in this area, in the area of 

6 the properties that we were dealing with. · ... ··. 

7 Q.. All right. Could you explain that fifteen 

8 percent? 

9 ~ Well, really it's an inflation increase 

10 per year. We correct ourselves in the event that they 
- . 

11 are greater than one year old to ~eflect this.inflation 

12 increase in the area. In particular, I contacted Mr. 

13 Clyde Barrett and Mr: Clark Gobble, Cli.nch Valley Bank, 

.14 and sone of the· real· estate developers and so forth in the 

15 ··-
Mr. Jim Frank Taylor. }-Ir. A. B. Jewell. ~d this .... area. 

16 fifteen percent was the concensus of opinion of these 

17 individuals. 

18 Q. Mr. Galliher, .Sof!1e of the sales you relied 
l 

19 on; you .testified as the date of sales '74, '75, '76; we.re 

20 adjust.~€nts, in fact, made for the time differential be-

21 tween those sales t."1e position by the Highway Department in 

.,.., _ ... Nover.ber of 1977? 

23 ~ That is correct. 

2-1 
Q. And was t..."-la t upward or downward? 

.,-_:> 
A. Up • 

BOS V. DRt..NSON 
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O. So an adjust.r.!ent was made to value this 

property for x:.ore l-Jased on t....i.e fact t..1'1at it was later in 

time, is that correct? ... : ........ 
. . -~ ... 

Yes, sir. 

MR. ALTIZER: I think that's all the questions I 

have. 

RECROSS EXA!UNATION 

BY MR. C? .. 2\HSERS: 

O. Mr. Altizer opened up an interesting avenue 

of inquiry, Mr. Galliher, concerning s.ize. Do_ you. compare 

sizes? ·- . ., .. . . . 
1'. Yes. .. •. _, 

0. Lots were not mentioned from your sales 

brochure and weren't included _as a part of your considera-

tion. Tell the commissioners which was the nearest in 

size to the property under consideration today? Was it 

the eight acres down on Indian Creek or was it the twelve 

acres that was sold to the CU!!'.berland Plateau Mental Health 

Cor:u:tl.ssion or whatever it is? 

1'. Well, you have two sales. One with eight 

acres and one with sevan point seven. 

O. And one with twelve or thirteen? 

One Let's see what ~"lat was here. One 

had fifteen point eleven acres • 

SOB V. e !=!A~.;SCN- -
cou~r f.\,::Po~~t;.R 
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0. There are seven, fifteen and eight. 

A.. Point seventy-seven. You might say two-

-· 
eights. .. : . .. .. . . ........ ::. · .. , . 

.. 
' 

0. You don't have a sale under two acres, do 
. 

.you? ... .. 
, . . 

A. The subject is fiv.e point seven ·two acres • 
.. 

0. I ~ought it was one point three. 
. . • 

A. That's the take. .. .. .. 
... 

. 0. ·Well, are you taking anything besides one 

point three acres? 
.. 

A. The subject property as a whole has five 

poin.t seventy-two acres. 

O. Are you telling this co!Jmi.ssion t.~at you 

are valUing that whole property as a take? 

- A. No, sir. We are not taking the whole 

property. We are ·obtaining one point three acres. 

That's what's really been transferred from 

the landowners to the State, isn't it? One point three 

acres? 

A.. One point ~~ree acres was transferred to 

t...'le State. 

O. wµere have you found so~thing under two 

acres?. You say sizes are a reasonable standard for 

com9arison, or one of the reasonable standards for com-

806 V. e~~NSON· .. 
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parison. Hhere have you found anything U."'lder two acres? 

& I am sura there are some sales there for less 

than two acres, but in my appraisal, I appraised the whole 

property, the whole five point seventy.:.two acres, at fifty-

four hundred dollars per acre and the strip off of the 

·front of it .at fifty-four hundred dollars per acre. Now, 

when we obtain·-'_ this one ·point three acres, Hr. Cantrell 

will still have around five hundred forty feet of frontage 
... .. -.. .. , 

coming onto Route +9. ,. ... .··' ::.:: .. . 
.. .. -· .. 

. •. . · .. · . •w • 

0. You are saying if you. take it a little bit 
· . 

- • • .&. ~ .. 

at a time it doesn't hurt as much? .. : ·. 
' .... 

.... " 
A. No, sir, I didn't make any such statement. 

~ Is tine ano~~er fair standard for comparison; 

that is, sales nearest in time to the date on which the 

State takes the landowner's property? Would they normally 

be ~~ought to have greater value in your considerations, 

other factors being equal, of course? 
.-.. 

A. Yes, sir. The most recent sales ware 

_definitely the best sales, if all factors. are equal. 

Q. Now, tb.e sales that we pointed out, whic..l-i aret 

the closest in time? 

One sale or two sales there at Claypool 

Bill are the closest in ti:::e •. But I think other factors 

outweigh that. 

I 
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. 
Q. One. on October 14th and one on July 28t..1'1?'. 

A. Yes, sir. 

o. Then I believe also the Underground Energy 

Corporation sale in July of - -

A. I don' t rer~1ember- the date. 

Q.. All. of them were within four months of 

when the State took the land we are concerned with here, 

and your nearest is what, a year and a half or two years? 

A. A year and a half. 

O. Road frontage. How much road frontage each 

property has. Is th<:1.t another" fair and ·reasonable standard 

for comparison, othet things being equ~l., of course? 

A. Yes, sir, that. is correct. 

We have gotten five hundred and forty feet 
-::.. 

of road frontage.. How much road frontage on 19 does the - · 

I can't think of the man's name, but he's got the eight-

acre house site • 

A. Charles Davis. 

O. How much road frontage has he got on l.9? 

A.. Well, one reason I used the sales I did is 

only one entr.t at the present _time off 0£ Route 19 gives 

access to this property.. It's eighteen or twenty 'feet 

above grade in a rock cut or t~enty-sooe feet below grade 

in a fill.. The only entry to the property is the width. of 

BOB V. 9R,),!'ISO!'l . _ 
COU~l" =n.?C.VTfA · 
RO'...IT! e. ~u" 6~ 
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2 the driveway coreing into the property. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 . 
14 

15 . 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21. 

22 

23 

25 ,,, 

11 

But it is all r~ght on Route 19, isn't it? 

It's right on Route 19. 

You could level the frontage? 

A. Yes, sir, you could if you could. afford it. 

Do you know how much that would cost? 

A. I would say it would cost thousands. 

Know before you guess, now. Do you know? 

No, sir, I don't know. 

The fifteen perc~nt factor that.you mentioned 

in redirect ex~"lination, is that valid today? 

·A. I checked it as of the date of the last 

appraisal I did up here and it was at that time. Tod~y, I 

coul.dn' t say. 

··· O. When was the last appraisal you did up 

here, app~oximatcly? 

A. I think the last one I did was the R. B. 

Shortt property where Mr. Shortt has the two or three 

.trailers on up toward Claypool Hill •. And I don't re~en:ber 

the date. 

·MR. CH.1'~!BERS: I believe that's all, Mr. Galliher. 

The witness withdrew and resm-.ied his seat at the 

table -with counsel. 

MR. ·ALTIZER: Your Honor, we w"Ould like to recall 

· BOB V. !3F<ANSON 
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Mr. Canter, please. 

ROBERT L. CA!!TER 
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. . 

having been previously sworn, was recalled and testified 

as follows: 

DIRECT EXNUN!-.':'IOU 

BY.HR. ALT!~ER: 

Q. Mr. Canter, just a couple of sh9rt questions. 

Some question has come by Mr. Chambers in regard to the 

additional entrance that will be provided to Mr. Cantrell's 

property. Now, is that an entrance that is an additional 

-

. 
entrance for him? . ., -

: 
·""· . .. .. 

' sir, it is. A. Yes, .. .. 

·-. -· . 
: 

Q. Is that for his benefit? .. 
.. . -

' 
.... .. 

A. Yes, sir. ' -
~ - -

' 0. Can .that entrance ··be. done away with if he 
- - .. 

does not want that entrance? ··.· 
" 
... 

A. Yes, sir, upon his request • 

So that is specific~lly put in there for 

him? 

·Yes, sir. 

MR. ALTIZER: That's all. 

BY ?·!R. co:s S : 

CROSS EXF.!U~iA.T!ON 

Did :·tr. Cantrell ever request that entrance? 

909 'J . . SRA'-;SQN 
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I wasn't present on t.~e field inspection. 

I don't know. 

MR. Cm·1BS: Thank yot:.. . 
. .. 

The witness withdrew and resu.lled his seat at the 
.. ...... table with counsel. .. 

MR. ALTIZER: We rest, Your Honor. .. .. 

THE COURT: All. right. The Highway Commissioner. 

·rests. We will take about a ten minute break here. 

The Court recessed at 2:30 o'clock p.m. on 

April 9th, 1979. 
·: · ... 

.. 
.• .. 

The Court reconvened at»2:45 o'clock p.m. on 

April 9th, 1979. 

YOR!( LINDSEY : ..... : . :t::- ~ ... ,. 

having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as 

follows: .... ·, .. - .. ..... :·.-:. -~- ~ . 

DIRECT EXA:1Il1ATION 
~ .. - .-

BY HR. CO!·!BS: .... ~- .. ··: ·.= .... -

~ State your name to the Court and commission, 

please. 

York Lindsey .. 

What is your residence, ~·!r. Lindsay? 

A. 1103 r:ast Front Street, Richlanc!s; Virginia. I 

How are you employed? 

~ I an employed by Fields Real Estate Company 

... ---
. .. .. . 

. -
, 

.. 
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I . 

2 in Richlands. 

3 ~ How long have you been so employed? 

4 A Three years. 

5 ~ What is your educational background? 

6 A I graduated from Ferrum College in 1976. 

·7 I have been to real estate school in Roanoke .and then I 

8 attended two courses under.the American Institute ·of Real 

9 Estate Appraisers. 

10 ~ Where did you attend these courses? 

11 A University of Georgia. 

12 ~ I believe you are originally from the 

13 Richlands area, is that correct? 

14 A That's right.· I've lived there twenty-five 
... 5-

15 or twenty-four years. 

16 _ ~ State whether or not you have kept up with 

17 the real estate transactions in the Richlands-Claypool 

18 Hill area. 

19 A I have kept up with them. I have bought 

20 and sold property there. 

21 ~ For how long? 

22 A For t.~e last four or five years. 

23 
~ Before you got in~o real estate? 

24 
~ Before I got into the real estate business, 

. 25 
I had been buying and selling some property • 

BOB V. BRANSqN 
ccuqT RE?ORTER . 

ROUTE 8. F.IOX 65 8 4 
ABINGDON. VIRGINIA 24210 
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2 Q. Alone or with partners or just how? 

3 A. Both. Hostly partners. 

4 Q. Do you have any licenses or anything of that 

5· 
~' nature? 

6 A I have got a real estate salesman's license 

7 and I :am worki~g on the designation of :&~ with American 

8 Real Estate Appraisers. 

9 Q. What does that· mean? 

10 ~ You have to have field experience of so 
-.;.: 

11 many years; three years; to get the designation. 

12 Q. The classwork that you have taken is toward 

13 that? -·· 

14 A I have taken ·classwork. 

15 Q. Was it a.matter of time? 

16 A A matter of time. 

17 .Q. Have you had opportunity to appraise property 

18. loca't;ed West of Claypool Hill belonging to Mr. ·and Mrs • 

. 19 Calvin Cantrell? 

20 A. ·I have. 

21 Q. Would you tell. the commission what you did 

22 with reference to inaking this appraisal? 

23 A I appraised the property as of November 17th, 

24: 19.77. 

.,~ _;, Q. For.purposes of clarification, I want to 

BOS V. 9.RANSQN 
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ask, did you actually go on the properties that date or 

is that when you are basing your appraisal? 

A. No, that's when I'm basing my appraisal. I 

inspect the property three times while doing the appraisal. 

Q. Just generally.describe what you found with 

·.reference to the property and what w~s being taken. 

A. .· The property being taken was one point three 

acres, according to the map.that I used given to me by the 

Cantrells. Approximately five hundred and th~rty-four 

point forty-five feet of road frontage~ And approximately 

a hundred feet deep on tha East end by approximately one 

twenty feet on the West end in depth and five hundred 

thirty feet at t.he rear • 

Q. _.Now, generally describe what you found the 

property to be and what you say is the highest and best 

use of the property. 

Q. After inspect~on of the property, I felt 

like the. highest and best. use would be for commercial 

use.· 

Q. And upon what do yo~ base this? 

A. I base that upon comparable sales in the 

area. 

Q. Why do you think this property would be 

suitable for that, for cornm.ercial? 

BOB V. BRANSON. 
COURT R!!PORTER . ~6 
ROUTE 8. SOX 65 C 
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2 A. Well, your road front has a tremendous 

3 impact on that. And your area; you are in a good area 

4 at a crossover. Lots of traffic crossing.over •. The 

5 property is the type of ·property where you ·have· got to be 

6 improved. It is. a cut ,and fill type situation. I felt 

7 ·like. it was a good situation, -for you could make a cut 

s and fill. You wouldn't have to haul away or haul in. 

9 All right. Now, you say you compared this 

.10 to some other conunercial properties, is that right? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 First, let rr~ ask you what· you feel the 

13 .fair market value of ··this property was as of the date of 

14 the take? ""· : . 

].5 My evaluation, I felt like....-. the site 

16 evaluation was nineteen thousand five hundred dollars. I 

17 also did·a damage figure. 

18 First, limit yourself to the value of the 

19 · property its elf. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. Okay. 

You are saying nineteen five for t.l)e one 
.·. 

p0int three acres being taken? 

Q. Now, tell the commission, if you would, 

pleas·e, what factors you.took into account in reaching or 

809 V. BRANSOl'j _ 
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2 arriving at this figure. 

3 A. I basically used three sales. One of them 

4 was about a mile East of Claypool Hill that sold from. 

5 G. W. and Freia Dalton and Nelson T. and Ethel M. Barker 

ff to Jason Shortt, which was a sale price of twenty-one 

·. 7 thousand dollars on 10/14/77. Broken down price per acre 

8 of twenty-six thousand, five ~undred dollars. 

9 . 0. Did you make any other breakdowns? 

10 A. Seventy-nine hundreths of an acre at two 

11 hundred and twenty-five foot of frontage. Average depths 

12 of a hundred and fifty-two feet. That was· ninety-three 
• f. 

13 dollars thirty cents a front foot. This .property was 

14 severely below the road and took several loads of dirt· to 

15 be filled. 

16 . 0. For the purpose of the commission, would 

17 you tell them what use is being made of the property at 

18 the present time? 

19 A.. It is _being used by Mr. Shortt. He is 

20 .selling portable outbuildings and used cars on the lot. 

21 And it was after the sale took place that 

22 
the fill was made? 

23 
Right. He filled.the property himself. 

24 
Did he purchase property at this site, 

25 
with which he could fill in that particular property? 

809 V. BRANS.ON 
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. 
~- No. He ·had to haul the dirt from Claypool 

Hill, approximately a mile and a half away from this 

property. 

~ Now, did you. give any consideration to the 

location of t.~e property belonging to Jason Shortt being 

·1ocated on t.lie Tazewell side o.f Claypool Hill as compared 

to the Russell County s·ide of Claypool Hill? 

A Yes, I did. 

~ Would you explain that to the commission? 

A I felt like the property bought by Mr. 

Shortt was a better property for reason of traffic count, 

approximately sev.enty-five hundred on that end and six 

thousand where the subject property ·is. That was a '77 

figure. And I also felt like he had bett~r visibility; I 

adjusted for that. 

~ In o·ther words , this would have been a 

downward adjustment for the Cantrell property? 

A Right. Plus the depth. 

Q. Okay •. Meaning, there was less depth involved 

in the Cantrell property. 

MR. HART: Your Honor, Mr. Chambers has been 

objecting all morning to leading and I am going to-object 

this afternoon to him leading, if I may. 

i_ 

THE COURT: I sustain the objection • 
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2 Any other factors that you considered in 

3 this particular property in comparing it with .the Cantrell 

4 property? 

5 A. I didn' t make any adj ustinents for time 

6. because this was 10/14/77 and the other was 11/11/77. 

. 7 . All right. Now, the other comparable sales 

s that you used? 

9 The second one is dated July 28th, 1977, 

10 approximately half a mile West of Claypool Hill on the 

11 Nor.th side of u. S. Highway 11. The sa~e pric~ was twenty 

l2 thousand dollars. The granter is John A. and Katherine 

13 M. Warren. The grantee was Jason Shortt and York Lindsey. 

14 ·Seventeen lots. . It had a road frontage of two hundred 

15 foot; about two hundred and fifty feet in depth. It was 

16 one point one five acres. Dollar per. f.ront foot was a 

17 hundred dollars. The price per acre was seventeen 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24: 

25 

thousand,. four hundred dollars. 

Who is the York Lindsey that is the grantee 

'in that particular- sale? 

A. York Lindsey,., here. 

Would you describe the location of your 

tract with reference to that apartment building just West ·- -

A. The property is to the West of that between 

that property - - I believe the neighbor on the other end 
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2 is Fred Blankenship. 

3 Q. Are ·there any improvements on the Blankenship 

4 property? 

5 Right. There is a house there. 

6 Q. Now, would you 1.escribe the property that 

7 you purchased? 

8 A. Okay. I don' t:know how familiar the commissio 

9 is with the property. But I took one picture if anybody 

10 would want to see it. It was on an uphill grade. There 

11 would have to be seve~al yards of dirt moved. 

12 Is. this the picture that y9u took of your 

13 · property? 

14 A. Right. 

15 From where· did you take that-picture? 

16 From where? 

17 Yes, where were you standing? 

18 At the edge of the ·road. 

19. Okay. And the property is located on which 

20 side of the highway? 

A. On the Nort..'l side of the highway. 

22 
Does this· picture accurately depict the 

23 
property t..'lat you:_purchased there? 

Right. It.' s got a bank in front and a 

25 
pretty steep grade going up. 
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MR. COMBS: Your Honor, I would move for the intro-

duction of the picture. 

THE COURT: That will be Landowners Exhibit No. l. 

~· There has been ·some testimony today about 

.a factor to relate the increase in the value of the 

property and it's been testified that by the.Commonwealth 

they used a factor of an increase of approximately fifteen 

percent per year. With reference to this property, would 

you have any comment as to using a factor of that sort? 

~ Yes. I've got a contract to.sell the 

proper.ty 

MR. HART.: We object, Your Honor, to what kind of 

contract he may have unless it was prior to the take. 

-
THE COURT: I sustain the objecti..Qn. 

Q. ·And the other comparable sales that you 

considered? 

~ My· third comparable sale was two miles 

West of Claypool Hill on the North side of u. s. Highway 

19. Sale price, fifty thousand dollars. The grantor 

was John T. and Carolyn M. Stevenson. Grantee was Under-

ground Energy Corporation. Lot size, two point seven 

acres; approximately six hundred fifty-six feet of frontage 

and approximately one hundred sixty feet in depth. Price 

per front foot, seventy-six dollars, twenty cents. Price 
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2 per acre, eighteen thousand five hundred dollars. 

3 Would you tell the commission what has 

4 been done to that property? 

5 A. The property is being excavated. They have 

6 come in and blasted some of the rock. It was a cut and 

7 fill type situation where none of the materials had to be 

8 taken away from the property. I also have a picture of 

9 that, if anybody would want to see that. 

10 Q.. Is this the picture that.you took? 

11 A. Right. 

12 MR. COMBS: I move the introduction of that 

13 picture. 

14 THE COURT: Number 2. Landowner's No. 2. 

-
·15 Q.. Did you determine the cost of the excavating 

16 of that site? .• 

17 A. Yes •. · I verified that with Tom Br·ewster. 

18 What is his position? 

19 A.· Re is secretary for Underground Energy. 

20 What was that? 

21 A.· The price to excavate was approximately 

22 thirty-five thousand dollars~ 

23 

24: 

25 

A,nd did you determine the purchase price 

of the. building, the Ponderosa restaurant,. that· was moved 

on the property? 
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2 A. Right. 

3 Q. What was that? 

4 "A. I wasn't exactly sure, but it was real close 

5 to sixty-eight hundred dollars and the price to move ·was 
" 

; 

6 thirty-two thousand dollars. 

7 Now, you stated previously· that you also 

s have considered the question of whether or not there is 

9 

10 

. 11 

12 

13 I 

14 

15 I 

. 
16 

17 

18 

19 

20 I 

21 
I 

I 

22 

23 
: 

2! 

25 

1 · 

I 

any damage to the remaining four point some acres that 

belong to Mr. and Mrs. Cantrell? 
. 

·' 

A. Right. 

0. Would you state for the commission, please, 
. 

what·, in your opinion, the a.mount of the damages to the 
- .-

·residue is. ' 

A. I came up with a figure of five thousand 

dollars. ~ 

" 

Q. . And upon what do you base this? HOW did 
•' 

you arrive at that figure? 
~. 

A. Well, I considered what I thought was the 

damage to the house-and on a resale of the property I 

felt like i.t would definitely hurt the resale by that 

much, that figure. I based that on my prior experience 

in the real estate business. 

· Wh~t, in your opinion, will it do by 

establishing this new lane where they are establishing it? 
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2 What will it do to their house? Well, as I 

3 am sure everybody understands, it's going to bring the 

road a lot closer to their property which, I feel, would 

5 de.finitely hurt it, by the noise. It's going to put their 

6 house below the road, farther below the road. I think this 

7 is going to hurt their view. Another ~hing I considered, 

8 which I really wasn't sure on, was I could foresee some 

9 type of a water problem that they are going to have unless 

10 the State, you know, cures that. 

11 Any other factors than those, or. anything 

12 else you considered? 

13 A. . I think it.was basically going· to put them 

14 down in a hole more than they are with the elevation of 

15 the road. 

16 MR. COMBS: You may ask •. 

17 WITNESS: Also, I felt like that the driveway could 

18 be placed on a steeper grade. 

19 MR. COMBS: All right. YoU: may ask. 

20 CROSS EXAMINATION 

21 BY MR. IL.a.RT: 

22 You say the driveway is going to be on 

23 a steeper grade? 

24: 
. A. 

25 0. 

I felt like it would be • 

. Did you have the_ plans, the highway plans, 
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2 available when you made your appraisal? 

3 I had a copy of - - I've got a map - - the 

4 only map· that I had, which showed the take. A map like 

5 this. 

6 Do you know who prepared that map? 

A. It's a copy of one of the State Highway 

s Department's maps. 

9 0. Who gave it to you? 

10 A. I got it from another appraiser. He had 

11 a copy. 

12 From the Highway appraiser? 

·13· 
No. He was another appraiser. 

14 0. The .other appraiser for the defendant? 

15 A. Right~ . 

16 
You got it from hill!? 

17 
A. Right. 

18 0. When did you go on this property? 

19 
A. I went on. it Monday. I went on it Tuesday 

20 
and I went on it Thursday. 

21. 

22 

23 

25 

Q. Of what week? 

A. Last week. 

Q. Is that the ·first time you had been on it? · 

A. I« might have walked on it a time or two. 

Q. That was the first time you went on it for 
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the purposes of making an appraisal? 

A. Right. Yes, sir. 

Q. And this take was back in November of 1977? 

A. Right. •. 

Q. And you just got on the property last week? 

A. Right. 
~... . . 

Q. And what you have testified about is a 

result of what you've come up with in the last week, is 

that right? 

A. ·Yes, sir. 

York, you said.you had bee~ to the University 

of Georgia for two courses? 
." 

A. Right. 

·-.·How long were those? 

A·-total of three weeks. 

A week or two course or ten days? 

. A week. And another course was a week. 

What were these courses dealing with? 

The first course was basic principles of 

real estate appraisal and the other one was on appraisal 

of single family residences. 

Q. And you went to·school in Roanoke? 

A. Right. 

O. How long were you down there? 

808 V. BRANSON" 
COURf R!OPCRTER ~-}1-J 
ROUTE B. BOX 55 • - r 

A81NGOCN. VIRGINIA 24210 

! 



I Lindsey - Cross by Hart 85 

2 A total of three weeks. 

3 Was that taking courses in appraisal? 

4 A. No. This was real estate courses. They 

5 weren't appraisal courses. Real estate sales. 

6 Q. So the only real schooling you have had 

7 .4ealing with appraisals is the two courses at the Univer-

8 sity of Georgia? 

9 
- A. . Right. 

10 Q. And only one week was devoted to real estate 

··-
I 

11 appraisals? ,. 

I 12 A. No. Both of them.were real estate appraisal 

., 

13 courses. 
I 

The ~asic course was two weeks. 

. Q. . 14 
And the one week course? 

15 . 
"A. Was on single family residence-s. 

- •. 

16 
Q. 

.. 
But you have appraised this as commercial 

;., .:· 

17 
property? 

·IS 
A. Right. 

19 
Q. Now, what you have said, this take was a 

20 
hundred feet in depth on the East end, I believe, and a 

21 
hundred and twenty feet on the West end. If the highway 

22 
maps indicate it is some less distance, you wouldn't 

23 
argue with that, would you? 

No, I wouldn't. There is.one thing I re-
24 

measured. 
25 
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2 Did you measure those distances off on the 

3 map? 

4 Right. 

5 That you got? 

6 Right. 

7 And that's a copy of the map? 

8 A. Also off of another map which I have of the 

9 property. 

10 All right. I can't find it in my notes, but 

11 my memory is your testimony previously is about ninety 

12 feet or ·ninety-five feet on the ·East and_ a hundred and 

13 ten feet on :the West. You wouldn't argue with that, 

14 · would. you? 

15 A. Yes, if that map is correct, I would. I've 

16 got a ruler and it shows exactly two inches and it comes 

17 out to a hundred foot on the scale on the East end. 

18 Q. 

19 engineer or 

20 A. 

21 the scale I 

Q. 

23 
A.. 

24 map that Mr. 

25 

So you think the highway right of way 

agent is wrong? 

No. I'm saying, according to the map and 

used to get that, that's what I came up with. 

That's what you came up with? 

Right. I got the road frontage from this 

Cantrell gave me. 

I believe you said in your opinion the 
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2 highest and best use of this property was for commei::cial 

3 property?· 

4 A. Right. 

5 How many commercial establishments·do you. 

6 know of once you get West of Clayp<?ol Hill, West of Mullins 

·7 Motel? 

Well, most of tilem have been taken by the 

9 .. Highway Department. 

10 

11 

12 

13 
.. .- . 

14· 

15 
-

.16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24: 

25 

0. There was the-. old: Blue Bonnet, wasn't there? 
. ' ' 

-
A. Yes. ·' 

.. 

0. That closed, didn't it? -

A. Well, right. 
.4 

Q. So that wasn't taken ·by the Highway Depart-
.. r 

ment. That closed. 

A. Right. ' 
·-· .. . 

Q.. And there was the Ponderosa? 

A. Right. '. 

Q. And there was a. junk yard down there which, 

I guess, was commercial? · 

A. Rig:Q.t. 

.Q. Then as you go on down, you get to Sam 

Baylor's store and Helton's store, don't you? 

A. Archie Helton's store. 

Q.. Can you think of any more? 
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2 A. A Kayo station was there. The State took 

3 it. There was a machine shop right where you turn in to 

4 go to S&S Machinery. There was a food and recreation 

5 place down there at the college they took. 

6 Down past the stores that we are talking 

· 1 about? 

8 A. Right. That's about it. 

And there is a motorcycle place on down 

10 across from the college. We know about that. But from the 

11 top of Claypool Hill down to Wardell, 1;.hat·ha~ not grown 

12 commercially like the area from the top of Claypool Hill 

13 back. towa~d Tazewell. Isn't that fair, John York? 

14 A. I don't think so. My opinion on that would 

15 ·be that land has not been able_ to be bough~. 

16 0. You just.think the land this way has been 

17 unavailable? 

18 A. I think the land is more valuable on the 

19 otb.er side of Claypool Hill. 

20 

21 

22. 

23 

24 

0. Even with the car count that you are talking 

about? 

A. Right. And I° feel like, you know, that's 

got to be one.of you~ basic opinions on that, the reason 

it is oore valuable. 

That's a judgment calf, is that not right? 

BOB V. BRANSON 
COUAT REPORTER 
AOVTE 0. BOX 65 . -« 01 

ASINGOON. VIRGINIA 24210 . .l.·L' 



~..:.. 

.. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

-14-

15 
. 

16 

17 

. 18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2-1 

., . 

.. :> 

Lindsey - Cross by Hart 89 

A. Yes. The traffic count is fifteen hundred 

more, so I would think the land is a little more valuable. 

Q. I thought you said, it was fifteen hundrad - -

~ Fifteen hundred more. 

Q. Coming East, didn't you say that? 

A. Going from Claypool Hill to Tazewell, it's 

fifteen hundred more. Where the subject property is, it's 

a little over six thousand and it's seventy-five hundred 

going from Claypool Hill to Tazewell. 

Q. ·Doesn't more traffic make it more desirable? 

A. You're right. I· was saying that, yes. But 

I made adjustments for that. 

Q. You thin.~ the property from Claypool Hill 

East toward Tazewell is more valuable? 
. 

'A. Right. . 
.. ' 

Q. For commercia1 property? 

A. Right. 
-

Q. Do we agree there hasn't been a lot of 

commercial development from Claypool Hil1 West to where 

we are talking about? 

A. Well, I don't think there.is substantially 

more on one end than there is the other. 

O. Let me ask you this, John York. Right here 

where Mr. Cantrell's property is, isn't that primarily a 
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residential area? 

~ Well, there is a big three acre site that 

has just been prepared right across the road that's going 

to be leased or sold within the near future. 

.o, Do you have any connection with that three 

acre tract? 

~ , I don't own it. 

O. Do you have any connection with it? 

~ No •. But I, you know, I just know who owns it. 

That's all. 

O. But the area to the North,· on the North side 

of the road where Taylor lives and all that area. That's 

all residential, isn't it? 

~ Right. 

~. O. And, of course, where Mr. Cantrell lives, 

there are several houses along in there then as you go 

back on the South side of the road and it's all residen-

tial, isn't it? 

~ Yes. 

O. Pretty much. That's what it's being used 

for now? 

k I agree. I think the same thing had hap-
. 

pened on the other side of Claypool Hill •. 

~ That's what it was used for back in November 
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of '77, isn't it, residential? 

A. Right. 

~ Let me ask you this. If this property 

were developed - - Well, did you value the whole property, 

John York? Did you put a value on all of the five po·int 

,three acres? 

A. I was just asked to do an appraisal on that 

.• 

one piece of property, not the whole property. 

~ Did you put a value on the house? 

No;.. sir. 

And the other improvem~nts? 

No, sir.· 

~ You didn't look at those? 

A. No, sir. I was not asked to. 

~ You weren't asked to. And in the short 
.. < ., 

time you had to do t..'lis, you didn't do it? 

A. Right. 

~ Well, let me ask.you, if the front was sold 

off of this property for t..'le use you want to· put it to 

for commercial property, what would that do to the value 

of Mr. Cantrell's house setting on the back side of the 

property? 

A. · °C'lell; some people live right - - they like 

to be at their own business. If he had his own business - ~ 
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it depends on the individual. 

Q. We are not talking about him putting in a 

business. We are talking about selling it for· a business. 

What ·would that do to the fair market value of the house.? 

A. I think it could hurt it. 

Q. It would damage it right much, wouldn't it, 

depending on what business you.would put in front of it. 

A. It just depends on what you use it for. 

Q. What ·do you think that site would be 

suitable for in the way of commercial development? 

A. A self-service gas station_ or something. 

If anybody can afford that. 

Q. What do you mean, if anybody can afford it? 

A. Afford the gas. 

Q. Anything else you can think of? 

A. A car lot. 

Q. Let's taL~ about a car lot and self-service 

gas. Would that· damage the value of the residence if it 

was sold for the purpose of, say, putting a used car 

lot on it? 

A. I think it would damage it some. 

Q. · · Well, John ·York, in considering the use 

you are going to-make of this property, -don't you have to 

consider the value of t.11e residence as a part of the 
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property and what you do with the front affects the back? 

A.. I agree. I just appraise the amount that is 

being taken and what the highest and best use for it would 

be. 

~ So you are saying; I forgot what kind of a 

.dollar mark you put.on it: but.nineteen thousand five 

hundred; if you sold that for nineteen thousand five 

hundred, you might destroy a fifty thousand dollar house 

setting· behind it. 

A. I think. it could hurt it. 

~ Or damage it considerably?-

~ Right."But I think you'v~ got to look at 

the fact, you know, did tuey.want to sell the property. 

~ I think you do. But you also have to look 
...... 

at what the best use of this property is. 

A. .I agree. But I just appraised that one 

piece of property. I didn't appraise the rest of it. 

~ Don't you have to look at what the best 

use of this subject property is as it sets? 

A. Right.. If I was buying that piece of 

property, that would be my ma.in priority. That.• s the 

kind of value I would put on it. If Mr. Cantrell. had 

this piece of property to sell and I've got one point 

three acres, I woultln't buy it to put ~Y house on. I would 
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2 go in and cut it down and put a business on it. Cut it 

3 down and resell it. 

4 Q.· You would have to put a business on i.t to 

5 justify the kind of value you would put .on it, wouldn't 

6 you? 
~ .. 

7 A. Right. 

8 And if you put a business on it, you are 

9 going to damage the rest of the property. 

10 MR. CHAMBERS: Your Honor·, we think this is improper. 

11 Mr. Hart has gone into this a good de~l here. I think it 

12 ought to be cleared up now, that the damage ·to the residue 

13 is not related to what use is made of the property. It's 

14: t..11e taking of the property. that damages the residue. 

15 MR. HART: Your Honor, we are talking about what 

16 is the best use; the highest· and best use; for -this 

l7 particular property, the property that we are taking. 

18 MR. CHAMBERS: Well, .let Is take it up outside of 

19 the hearing of th.e corranission then. I would like to have 

# 20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

this matter cleared up. 

MR. HART: It would suit me all right~ 
. ' 

THE COURT: Let's let the commissioners stand 

aside for just a moment. 

The commissioners withdrew from the Courtroom at 

3:22 o'clock p.m. on A?ril 9th, 1979. 
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2 MR. CHAHBERS: May it please Your Honor, Mr. Hart 

3 has gone to great length here to question Mr. Lindsey about 

4 what effect the utilization of the front part of the 

5 property would have on the value of the back part of the · 

6 property, and U..""lless I• m badly mistaken,· it ·is completely 

irreleva.~t in this qase. There are two elements of damages, 

8 of course. One is the value of the land taken, reasonably 

9 adapted to its highest and best use. That is an element 

10 of damage which the commission has to consider. The other 

11 element is an element·of damage which is called damages 

12 and which is real.ly. the diminution in V'1.lue of the residue, 

13 .if any, as a ·result of the taking i tseif regardless of 

14 what U$e may be put to. that which is taken. And we respect 

15 fully request the Court to somehow, if ii! can be done now, 

16 clear this matter up in the minds of the commission, be-

17 cause Mr. Hart very adriotly tried to offset, and I think 

18 perhaps has succeeded in the· minds of the commission, to 

19 off set the possible diminution in value of the rear 

20 property from a particular use of the front property which 

21 is not a part of this case at all. 

22 

23 

25 

MR. HART: If Your Honor please, I think what we 

are going .to try to get at is what is the highest and best 

use of this· property and, as Mr. Lindsey has admitted, or 

I think he has admitted, it is setting in a residential 
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2 area where residences are on the subject property and on 

3 the adjoining property. I believe he testified on the 

4 South side of the road it is mostly residential. The top 

5 side of the hill and the North side of the hill is res±-

6 dential, except for a possible vacant lot that he seems to 

7 know something about· that has been bulldozed off. And I 

8 think he has admitted that it is pretty much residen·tial 

9 in this whole area. What I am trying to do is show the 

10 hi·ghest and best use of this pro~rty is exactly what it 

11 is being used for, and that is Mr. Cantrell's front yard. 

12 THE COURT: I think the position that a specific 

13 industry or business might be put on the property would be 
.. 

14 completely speculative. 

15 MR. CHAI•IDERS: Or its effect on the residue • . 

16 , MR. BART: Of course, this witness is on cross 

17 examination. I didn't ask him for any specifics. He 

·18 said he··was in the real estate business. I: asked him what 

19 type of commercial use he would have in mind for this 

20 .property and he replied. 

21 MR. CHA.HBERS: My objection is, Mr. Hart is asking 

22 him_, ~aying, well, John York,. wouldn't you have to take 

23 into-consideration, consideration irnplied_there of the 
. 

2-1 value of what is being taken. The fact that you are 

o-.:..<> damaging what you have got lef~, if you develop it for 
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a commercial purpose, and that's not in-this case. That's 

not the law and never has been the law. And I think it's 

wrong to let it stay injected. It's been injected in the 

•' 

case and it's -wrong to let it s.tay. You have asked that 

question. You have said to John York Lindsey, don't you 

have to .consider that you are damaging the rear property 

because you have allowed a commercial use on the front, 

in e.f f ec.t. 

MR •. HART: My point is,. you wouldn't sell it for 

commercial use, Your Honor •. 

THE COURT: That is in effect what the witness 

has testified to. 

MR. CHAMBERS : As a r.esul t of his questions. And as 

X understand it, his questions are improper. ... 
THE COURT: Certainly he has some latitude in 

cross ·examination here. I don't think that the Highway 

Commissioner can be cut off from ma.king some inquiry as 

to why or what his basis is for classifying this property 

as commercial property. 

MR •. CHAMBERS: Your Honor, we are not trying to 

cut them off. What we are saying is, Mr. Hart has asked· 

4µestions: and we can ge_t the Court Reporter to read the 

_questions back: in which he elicits an answer from Mr. 

Lindsey here to the effect that you must consider that the 
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real property is being damaged, diminished in value, 

because of a commercial use of the front property. Now, 

that is the answer that he has elicited and I think that's 

·a true answer .• There·' s ·nothing wrong with the quality of 

the answer. That's not a part of the case and that's what 

I'm objecting to, the Court allowing that to stay in as 

part of the record. I think the jury ought to be instr.ucte · 

that; and .I think they ought to be instructed now; that 

the fact that the front property may be developed 

cornmercial'ly is not ·to be considered by the commission 

as a diminution. or diminishing.in value 9£ what is to be 

awarded in this case, even though .. commercial development 

might, in. fact, if i.t ever happened, cause a decline in 

value of the real property. That's the evil of what Mr. 
~· 

Bart· is doing. 

MR. BART: Your Honor, what I think the issue in 

any condemnation case is fair market value and that's what 

the willing seller, under no compulsion, would sell to a 

willing buyer under no compulsion to buy. And my only 

point is a willing seller would not sell this property 

for something that is not only going to destroy his own 

property but the whole neighborhood. 

MR. CHAMBERS: That's not the criteria for 

measuring damages or.value in.this case or any other· case, 
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2 what a willing seller, what Calvin Cantrell, would sell 

3 this property for. 

4 MR. HART: We are talking about fair·· market value of 

the property. 

6 MR. CHA!-1BERS: You are talking about the value of 

7 a one point three acre tract. 

8 MR. HART: It's highest and best use. 

9 MR •. CHAMBERS: What's its highest and best use 

10 according to this witness?. 

11 MR. HART: That's what I was questioning him about. 

12 MR. CH.ru·illERS: No, you weren' t. · Your question was, 

13 wasn t t he. goi.D:g to have 'to diminish . the· value of the rear 

14 property. And that's what I 'rit objecting to and saying 

15 that' s wrong. .... 

16 ··· MR. HART: I1y point is, Mr. Chambers, you would 

17 not develop it for commercial or sell it for commercial 
' 

18 because of ,:the damage you wou~d do to: the res~ of your 

19 property and the whole neighborhood. 

20 MR. CHAMBERS: He wants to put a bridle on the 

21 landowner here saying he can't have the value because t.4'1.at 

22 isn't what he would do· with it. And that's what I keep 

23 saying is not the law. 

THE COURT: I think the landowner is right here, 

9~ Mr.· Hart. The fact tha·t there may be a business put on 
-<> 
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there, I don't believe is a part of the element of damages. 

He has testified that he classifies t...i.is property as com-

mercial and be~ause of the take the back part of the 

.property is damaged to the extent of five thousand dollars. 

Now, the fact that he may put a building on. there, he may 

put a big apartment building and block him off completely 

and destroy. the back part of the property, but I don't 

believe that is the proper approach to the thing. And I'm 

going to have to rule for the landowner here. 

MR. HAi."1.T: My point is, what is the highest and best 

use of this property and that's all I was trying to point 

out. 

THE COURT: The fact he might put an obnoxious 

building on there might discourage a sale on it. I t.L~ink 

this is what you are aiming at. 

MR. HART: No, sir. What I am aiming at is the 

highest and best use of this property is what the highway 

witness testified~ It is residential. It doesn't make 

any sense to talk about commercial development. Not this 

particular piece of property. 

THE COURT: You might be able to argue some of 

those things, but I believe you've gone far enough. 

.HR. HART: All right. I was about through anyway. 

MR. CHA!1BEP.S: If it can be do11e: I think it is- in 
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the minds of _the commissioners now, because, as I recall 

Hr. Hart's questions and the answers he elicited; as I say, 

I think they were honest answers~ but if you are going to 

have to visit Calvin Cantrell and his wife here with some 

diminishment in value because if you allow them tJ1e highest 

and.best use of their front property, then you are going 
I 

to have to diminish the value of the back property.- I 

9 think that was the net effect 'of this exchange that took 

10 place between counsel for.the Highway and the landowner 

11 and. I don't think can be adequat~ly h~dled i~ an instruc-

12 tion at the end of the case. I believe it could be handled 

13 .. · now wi.thout any prejudice to either side. 
I 

MR. HART: Your Honor, th~t was not the point of 

15 · the question. 

16 THE COURT: To try to erase the thing now might 

17 point up something to the conunission. If you wish to· 

18 take care of it by instruction, ! would allow that, but 

19 I believe now if you start to explain and try to erase it 

20 from the minds of the· commission 1 

- - certainly these 

21 questions, you would point those things up. 

22 

. 23 

25 

?·1R. CIWlBERS: I believe they've been pointed up 

pretty dangerously, Judge,_and I wouldn't suggest it unless 

I though_t there was a real dange·r in allowing it to stay. 

I'm fully cognizant you r.4ke matters worse sometimes 
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whenever you try to erase that, but I believe the Court 

could handle it very niceiy by saying simply, lady and 

gentlemen of the commission,·we :stopped because of a 

·matter .thathad to be 
. I 

the Court and argued here before I 
I 

I 

want to instruct you h . f I • t at i commercial use is an adaptable 

as in anyway diminishing the va~ue of the rear property. 

That's what :Hr. Hart was getting to and did get to. 

THE COURT: I think you had better do that by way 

of instruction. 

MR. CHAMBERS: All right, sir • 

THE COURT: It gets ticklish from the landowners' 

standpoint for the Highway Commissioner to try to erase 

'this from the minds of the jury 'by pointing out certain 

questions. But I would ask you 1not to go any further into 
I 

that line of questioning. 
I 

THE COURT: ! will state :to th.e commission the 

objection to the question at the time they were excused 

was sustained. 

The cor.unission returned to the Courtroom at 3:35 

o'clock p.m •. on April 9th, 1979. 

TllE COURT: Members of the commission, the objection 

which was raised to the line o·f questioning going on at. 

the tirr~ you were excused was sustained. So I will ask you 
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2 to disregard.· that part of the evidence. 

3 CROSS EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

4 BY. MR. HART:. 

5 o.. Mr. Lindsey,· I believe you also talked about 

6 damages to the residue? 
. i 

A. . Right. 

I 

8 But you did not value· the residue, did you? 
I 

9 A. No, sir. ·· 

10 . Either before or after the take? 

11 A. No, I did not appraise the residue. 

12 So you didn't make any appraisal of the 

13 residue? 

14 No,. sir. 

15 MR. HART: Your Honor1 I move to strike the evidence 

16 regarding damages from· t."lis witness •. 

l7 MR. COMBS:· Your Honor, he has 

18 

19· 

20 

21 

23 

25 

MR. HART: I think the rule is the value of the 

residue before the take and the:value iimnediately after. . ' 

. I 

If he hasn't made an appraisal of the worth of the residue 
I 
I 

immediately before and immediately after, I don't think 

he can testify as to damages. 

MR. CIIAMEERS : Damages. to the residue is a pretty · 

·subjective sort of term. This_. gentleman .has looked at the 

prop.erty and has stated in his opinion the· ta.king of· the 
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one point three acres in front of t..~e house will affect 

adversely the resale or a sale, a subsequent sale, of the 

house itself by as much as five thousand dollars. Now, I 

think the conunission can give that whatever weight they 

want to. They were down +-Jiere.. They saw the take. They 

saw the house. If they think it's not damaged, moving the 

road over closer is not damage, they can discount this 

figure. 

THE COURT: You can argue the case later, but I 

think I will sustain the objection to that evidence about 

any damage to.the residue, because the witness has testi-
. 

fied that he didn't make an appraisal of that. So I will 

sus.tain that motion and ask you to disregard the evidence 

of damage sustained to the residue by th.,is witness. 

, MR. HART: All right, sir. We have no further 

questions .. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COMBS: 

~1r. Lindsey, I will ask you to step up 

here if you would, please, and I will ask you if you 

recognize this map? 

L ·Yes, sir •. 

Q. .And is this the map from which your copy 

was made? 
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A. Right. 

~ There has been some testimony about some 

variation in the distances and I believe that your testimon• 

of the frontage on the highway was what, do you recall? 

A. Five thirty-four point forty-five. 

·' 

~ Okay. The Commonwealth has indicated -that is 

five hundred forty feet. Do you have any problem with that? 

A. No. What I took it from was a map I received 

from the Cantrells on the road frontage. I figured it was 

more accurate. 

~ I will ask you if you recognize this map? 

A. Right. 

THE COURT: Mr. Lindsey, can you stand around to 

the side so all of the members of the commission may see? 

And just for-identification purposes, this 

is the Calvin Cantrell land, Steelsburg, Virginia; and it 

shows a five point seventy-t:~o acre tract: Calvin Cantrell. 

And it s_hows Route 19-460. I believe it's only Route 19 

at.that point, though, is that correct? 

MR• HART: ·Your Honor, this is a new map. I haven't 

seen'this. We would like to look·at it. I don't· know what 

this is. 

THE COURT: You haven•. t developed who prepared 

that map. 
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MR. HART: Are you going to use that in evidence? 

Counsel conferred out of hearing. 

Q. There has also been some testimony about 

the distance of the line of the Eastern boundary of the 

property • 

'The scale is one inch to fifty feet. It 

comes out exactly two inches. It looks to me like that 1.s 

a hundred feet. That's the best I can see. 

Q. If you would measure that perpendicular 

to the right of way, what would you come up with? 

A. Right at a hundred feet. · 

Q. All right. Now, for reference purposes, 

you were going from the red line right at the highway, 

going straight down perpendicular to the right of way line, 

is that correct? 

A. Right·. 

0. Now,_ if. you went from the bottom here back 

up to the property line here, what would that be? 

A. Almost a hundred feet. Maybe a foot or two 

less than a hundred feet. 

Q. Okay. How do you account for the difference 

in that? 

. 
I don' t see anyway to measure it other than · 

on the take, you know. 
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2 Q. Now, would you measure off so the property 

3 line on the Eastern end excuse me, the Western end? 

4 A. A hundred and twelve and a half foot. 

5 MR. COMBS·: Okay. Thank you. You may be seated. 

6 Now, Mr. Hart has asked you about when you 

7 went on the property in question, but when were you 

s determining the value of the property? What was the date 

9 that you were considering the value of the property? This 

10 past week or when? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

A. November 11th, 1977. 

The date of the take? 

A. Right •• 

MR. COMBS: That's all. 

MR. HART: We have no further questions. .... 
THE COURT: You may stand aside. 

The witness withdrew. 

·.· · .. ROGER ·c. WALL 

having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as 

follows: 

DIRECT EXt'\HINATION 

BY MR. COMBS: 

State your name, please. 

·A. P.oge.r C. Wall. 

O. Where do you live, Mr. Wall? 
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2 Richlands, Virginia. 

3 How are you employed? 

4 
A.. I'm employed by Hargraves and Associates. 

5 Their home office is in Abingdon. We have a brokerage offic~ 

6 in Richlands and also in Lebanon. 

7 What is your capacity with Hargroves and 

8 Associates? 

9 A. Well, I'm the broker in charge of the Rich-
. in 

10 lands office and also I do/house appraisal work in all 

11 three of the of fices and do fee appraisals out of all 

12 three of fices • 

. 13 How long have you been associated with 

14 Har.groves and Associates? 

15 A. .About five years. 

16 Prior to that, how were you employed? 

A. I was associated with John Tate, Realtor, 

· 18 in Marion, Virginia. · 

19 How long have you been in the real estate 

20 business? 

21 A. . Licensed; about fifteen years. 

22 Have you had any particular training in 

23 real estate, or more spec~fically, appraisal work? 

25 

·A. Yes. I had classes at East Tennessee State, 

Virginia Highl~'"lds Community md Ohio State in appraisal, 
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and I'm an associate member of the Society of Real Estate 

Appraisers. 

~· How about in the·area of real estate? 

A.· . The Society.of Real Estate Appraisers is 

land appraisal, not antiques or other type of appraisals. 

Just strictly real estate appraisals. 

~ And how long have you been engaged in the 

making of real. estate appraisals? 

A. Approximately fifteen years for fees. 

~· Did you do any appraisal prior to that, not 

for fees? 

A. Yes. In house work, you know, in securing 

listings in real estate and so on, you do a market analy-

sis, which is not really an appraisal, but just an analysis 

of the sales price as it .. related to the· market. This type· 

of work was done prior to the time I started charging fees 

for appraisal work. 

~ Now, does your appraisal work include 

state whether or not your appraisal work includes raw 

land as· opposed to residential properties~ or just what 

does it·entail? 

~ The appraisal work that I have done in the 

pas~ included residential, commercial, farms, industrial 

site.s, commercial sites, including comme·rcial buildings. 
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~ Did you have an opportunity to make an 

appraisal of the property owned by Mr. and Mrs. Calvin 

Cantrell? 
.. '· 

A. Yes, sir. 
.• .. 

~ And when did you make that appraisal, or 

when (lid you view the property? 

A. I viewed the property the latter part of 

last week. I don't remember. It was last Thursday. 

Would you describe to the commission what 

.. you found, how you found the property to lay, . ~ts topograph • 
.. 

and what was being taken ·and so forth? 

A. Okay. The subject property is approximately 

···one. mile West of Claypool Hill. You al.-1 viewed the 

property. The property lays on the South side of u. s. 

19 and is approximately one hundred feet deep and approxi-

mately five hundred fifty feet long, with five hundred 

and fifty feet or road frontage along u. S. Route 19. The 

Western part of it is above the present road grade. The 

Eastern section of it, of course, lays below road grade. 

The Western section is. approximately twenty feet· above 

grade. The Eastern section is approximately fifteen feet 

below grade. 

~ Did you make an appraisal of. this property 

with reference to the value· of the. property on the date of 
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2 the take? Now, what was the date of the take? 

3 A. The date of tJ1e take: November 17th, 1977. 

4 o. And. did· you make an appraisal of the property 

5 based on that particular date? 

6 A.. Yes;. sir, I did. 

And what was·- - Well, let me ask you. 

8 ·What was your appraisal with reference to the property? 

9 A. The appraisal. I made was in reference to the 

10 strip of land that was on the South side of the highway 

11 approximately one hundred and ten feet deep and five 

12 hundred and fifty feet long. I. appraisea it as a fair 

13 market value as.of the date of the take. 

14 What was your ·appraisal? 

15 A. Thirty thousand dollars for the take~ 

16 . 0. Would you state to the commission, please, 

l7 how you arrived at that particular figure? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

<)<) ..... 

23 

25 

Well, I compared it with other pieces of 

property, similar property, that sold prior to the take, 

.and by comparing it with similar pieces of property, I 

arrived at the value of thirty thousand dollars. 

Did you make an appraisal of the property 

with regard to.its value prior to the take and its value 

after the take to.come up with a figure of the dimunition 

in value of the property as a result of the take? 
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A.. Are you asking me did· I appraise the dama~e 

to the residue? Is that what you are saying? 

~ Yes, sir. In other words, ·determine the 

value of the property prior to the take and. the value of 

the property after the take? 

-. MR. ALTIZER: Your Honor; he's leading the witness. 

I thinl~ he can ask him whether he has determined if there 

was any damage and how he.determined that damage. 

THE COURT: ·Don't lead the witness, but go ahead 

·with your answer. He can talk- about estimating the damages 

to the residue. 

A. I did ~ke an estimate of the ·damage to the 

.. residue. The basic damage. to the .residue will be caused 

by the· fact that the road frontage has been taken on the 
.;;. 

lot .that is on the Eastern part.of the take. 

MR. HART: It seems to me, in line with the Court's 

former ruling, he ought to say what he did before he can 

start giving figures. Maybe that's what Hr. Combs was 

getting at. 

THE COURT: I don't knew whether he wanted him to 

or whether he didn't • 

MR. HART: Maybe we objected when we shouldn't 

have, but I would· li.~e to find out how he arrived at his 

damage before· he gives his fig·ures ... 
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2 THE COURT: He's subject to cross examination. Go 

3 ahead with your answer. 

4 WITliESS: I was explaining how the property was 

5 damaged or how I feel that it· was damaged. The Eastern 

6 part of the take is damaged from the standpoint that prior 

7 to the take there was an excellent commercial site without 

8 damaging the single family residence that is on the prop-

9 erty. After .the take, the house itself is going to be in 

10 the.property that will have to be sold if it is going to 

11. be used as a commercial site. Presently, before the road 

12 goes in, there would be a conunercial ·site without moving 

13 ·.the house or without damaging the house. After the take, 

14 this conunercial site along the Eastern part will not be 

15 there without moving the house or damaging the house. This 

16 was the damage ·to the residue •. 

17 What, in your opinion, was the highest and 

18 .best use for this property? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A. This is definitely a commercial site. 

A.~d upon what do you base that? 

A. We~l, subject properties that have sold and 

the highest and best use that other people place on simi-

lar pieces of property in the general area. The primary . 

intersection of 460 and 19 is just one mile East of the 

subject property. 1'.nd all of .:the recent sales of property 
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and utilization of property in this area have been for 

commercial use .• So this would indicate that the subject 

property is for commercial use. 

MR. COHBS: You may answer questions by I·1r. Hart. 

CROSS EXAHINATION 

Mr. Wall., how long have you lived in Rich-

lands? 

A. I've been associated with this office since 

it opened in early 1976. 

~ Have you lived down there in this area? Did 

you move to Richlands? .. 
; .. 

A. Yes. ' .. . . 
0. At that time? ' 

--z • . . 
A. I just recently mcived to Richlands. 

~ 

Q. So you have lived there approximately a year 

or a little over before the day of this take? 

when 

last 

A. I have been working in this area since 1975 

we opened our Lebanon office~ 

Q.. Did you live in Lebanon for sometime? 

A. No. I've lived in Marion, Virginia 

fifteen years until just recently. 

~ When did you move to Richlands? 

~ In December of this past year. 
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2 December of '78? 

3 A. _Yes. 

Q. So you just came over here to work in the 

5 Richlands ·office in '76 and '77? 

6 A.. Yes, sir. 

7 I was a littl~ confused. You state on 

s this, commercial site East of the property. Is that on 

9 the East end, on the East end of the property?. 

10 A. Yes. The East end if the end that is closest 

11 to the intersection here at Claypool Hill. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

There is a driveway that goes in. You saw 

that, .didn •.t you? 

A. 

driveway? 

A. 

A. 

Q.. 

hole? 

A. 

Yes. 

That goes into the house? 

Yes. 

Are you talking about just West of the 

Just West of the driveway. 

In the sinkhole? 

Right. 

I take it you would have to fill the sink-

Yes, sir. Of course, the owners has 
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2 take just West of this area. 

3 That's a rock cliff, isn't it? 

4 Yes, sir. That entire area between Claypool 

5 Hill - - Well, all the way into Lebanon. Virtually all of 

·s that land is rocky. 

7 So what.you say is by the Highway take he 

8 is losing the valuable commercial site? Is that right? 

9 A. The one.that is in front of the existing 

10 single family residence. 
.. · 

11 0. And that is part of the take? 

12 A. Yes, sir. 

13 0. And somehow that's damaged the residue, 

14 because to get another commercial site, he's got to use 

15 his residence for the commercial site? Is that what you 

16 are telling me? 
,. 

17 A. Well, the road frontage, of course, is the 

18 most valuable part of a piece of conunercial property. He 

19 is still going to have road frontage, but the road frontage 

20 on that side is going to be damaged by the fact that now in 

21 the middle of the commercial site he has a sizeable single 

22 family residence·that something would have to be done. The 

23 residence in the middle of this site ends up being a detri-

24 ment to the site. 

25 So he shouldn't have his house where he 
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has got his house, is that right? 

A. Would you repeat the question?· 

Q. He shouldn't have his house where it is? 

A.: Well, the house was there long before the 

State Highway proposed to take the property. The fact is 

there was a· cormnercial site there before the take without 

moving the house. 

Q. What is the value of this house? Did you 

make an appraisal of that? 

A. Approximately sixty thousand dollars. 

Q.. Did you appraise the other_ improvements on 

the property? 

A. The other buildings would-not be affected 

by the take, so I did not do an appraisal. 

Q. Did you do an appraisal on them? 

A. On the other buildings? 

Q. Yes. 

A. No, sir, I didn't. 

Q.· The other improvements on the property? 

A. No, I didn't. 

Q. Did you. make an appraisal of the whole 

five point three acres? 

A. No, this was not involved in the take. 

Q. D.id you ma~e any appraisal of the residue 
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after the take? 

A. Yes. I appraised the residue as it would 

be affected by the take. 

·g. I d"idn 't· ask you that. What is the residue 

worth inunediately before the take? Did you make an 

appraisal· of that? . -

A.. ·No, sir, .I didn't. 

g.. You didn't? 

A. No, sir. 

MR. HART: Your Honor, I make the same motion. I 

move to strike any evidence from this witness as to damage 
. 

to the residue because he. testified he didn't make an 

appraisal of the residue· before the take. 

MR. CH..~·1BERS: we don' t think ther_~ is any evidence 

to be.stricken, Your. Honor. He's never testified to a 

doll.ar value. 

MR. HART: He testified as to damage. He didn't put 

a dollar value on it. But I move to str.ike any evidence 

he has given as to the damage to the residue. 

MR. CHAMBERS: May it please the Court, if he had 

testi£ied to a dollar value, I would be in a position to 

agree with Mr. Hart, as much.as he might be surprised. 

MR.·. HART: I would be surprised. 

MR. CHAMBERS: There has been·no evidence of dollar 
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COURT ;:)!:_?•:tRTE~ 
AOUTE 9. aox S5 

ABINGiOON. Vt?.GilNIA 24210 . 

. · .\ .. -·· .. 

1 ... 31. 



1 Wall - Cross by Hart 119 

2 value of damage. And I don't think the fact that the 

3 gentleman didn't appraise the residue immediately before 

4 and after the take disqualifies him from reciting those 

5· factors which he thinks are proper consideration of 

6 damages. 

THE COURT: I would have to strike the evidence 

8 as to his testimony about damage to the residue. He says 

9· he hasn't appraised the residue. r will sustain the 

10 objection and ask the connnission to disregard the testimony 

11 about dilmage to the residue. 

12 : MR. CRAMBE.RS : We except. 

13 Mr. Wall, you testified that the one point 

14 · three acres is worth, in your estimation, thir.ty ~'lousand 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

dollars? ,,.·. 

A. Yes, sir. 

How did you base that value? 

A. Well, approximately one mile on the other 

side of the primary intersection at Claypool Hill there 

was a tract or land that transferred - -

That was G. w. Dalton - -

A. To Jason Shortt. And there was approximately 

seventy-five hundreths of an acre and it sold for twenty-

one thou.sand dollars approximately one month prior to the 

·take.· 
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Q. Did you make any study of the use of land 

both East and West of Claypool Hill? 

~ I'm not sure I know what you mean. 

Q. Let me ask it to you another way. Isn't it 

true that the land on the South side of the highway, 

particul~rly coming East toward Tazewell from Claypool Hill 

.has been primarily developed over the last several years 

for commercial purposes? 

Yes, sir, basically because of the availa-

bility of it. 

Has there been any similar-development that 

you can point to for land from Claypool Hill West? 

No, sir, because of.the lack of availability. 

And I ·speak in respect to this as a broker. I have a 

number of clients who would be interested in property along 

U. s. 19 and I have personally done extensive work con-

tacting owners along the highway attempting to get 

property listed and it is not possible to get listings in 

that area simply because the owners are not interested 

in selling. 

Mr. Wall, isn't it "trt..le from the Cantrell 

property back toward the top of Claypool Hill, particularly 

-on the South side of the hill, that is.all residential 

now? 
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2 A. Well, I think you could classify the offices 

3 of the State Police. as connnercial. 

4 You have got State Police offices. That would 

. 5 be one. 

6 Q. And,· until the take, there was a service 

7 ·station; a grocery store. They have both been since the 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

taking of land - -

Where was the grocery store? 

... .. 

A. There was a grocery store in the service 

station across from - -

Merital Health? .i • 

A. Whatever is in that buildin<J. It's not· 

14 ··· Cu..'nberland ·Plateau. The Sheltered Workshop. There was a 

15 service station directly across the street until the 

l6 property was taken by the State. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

All right·, sir. Aside from those, the State 

Police and the service station-grocery store, most of it 

is residential, isn't it? 

A. Well, once you leave the site where the 

service station and grocery store used to be, the land 

does.not lay sUitable for residential or CO.!!lIIle:C'cial Without 

extensive improvement to the .. land. 

Down in that Steelsbui::g area, it• s all 

residential, isn't it? 
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' 

2 A.. You have apartment houses up on the North 

3 side. 

4 And that is residential? 

·5 ' A. Yes, sir. Apartments are. 

6 Q. All right, sir. On the North side, down 

·7. toward where Taylor lives and Shortt lives, along there 

8 it's· all residential, isn't it? 

9 The present use is residential. 

10 The present use of all of this property is 

11 pretty much residential. 

12 

13 I 
II 

A. Well~ on the North side there, you've got .. 

the -Sheltered workshop and a machine shop. Both of those 

:1 •.. 

14 1

1 would.be classified as commercial. 

15 As you·.go on down, you get to the Ponderosa, 

16 and as you go on down you get to Archie Helton's store? 

17 '' 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A. Yes. 

But can.' t you agree it's primarily res.identia ? 

A. It's present use is not its highest and 

best use. 

It's present use_ is primarily residential? 

A. It's primarily residential. 

And that was true in November of '77? 

A. Yes. All of those houses·have been along 

there for a number of years •. The houses were put in on 
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2 those sites before the property turned commercial •. Most 

3 commercial. property along the highways that have become 

4 conunercial were once residential. 

5 There are some fairly new houses, particular!~ 

6 on the !~orth side of the road, aren't there? Expensive 

- 7 .houses. 

8 A. I.J'l. the Steelsburg community, there is. 

9 And,. of course, 'there is Mr. Cantrell's 

10 house, which I think is relatively new. A very nice home. 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. and the house next door to -it?. 

13 A. Yes. 

14 0. Alt residential. 

15 A. Both of these are singl~ family residences. 

is 0. And that has been the way this property in 

17 this area has been used primarily until not only November 

18 of '77, but until today? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

A. Yes. The present use of that property is 

.single family residences. 

I take it all of the comparables you have 

used to come up with this thirty thousand dollar figure 

were commercial sales? 

A. Yes, sir. 

MR. HART: All right. I think that's all. 
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REDIRECT EXAHINATION 

BY MR. COMBS: 

0, .Now, you have testified that you feel the 

highest and best use is commercial? 

A. Yes, sir. 

o, Now, t..11e property that is being taken, the 

frontage that is being taken here, this is what you testi-

fied to as being conunercial. But also all of this back in 

here, do you feel that is commercial property, also? 

A. Yes •. 

o, Okay. You have based your-~stimation of the 

value upon the premise that the property is suitable for 

commercial use? 

A. Yes, sir, the highest and best use of this 

property based on recent sales of ·similar property; all of 

them were purchased for commercial sites; would. indicate 

the highest and best use for this site would be as a com-

mercial piece of property. 

o, And if your conclusion had been that it was 

suited for residential, howmuch difference would that 

~.ake in your appraisal? 

A. Very little in dollar value, simply because 

I· in Cedar Land Farms, which is a subdivision located here 
' 

at Claypool &ill, tJ1e current ·price of a single family 
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reside.ntial site in that area for a twenty-five by a 

hundred and twenty-five foot lot is fifteen hundred 

dollars. 

MR. ILJ\.RT: Your .. Honor, I would like for. him· to 

refer to .the values as of November of '77. That may be 

what he is doing. · 

~ I would caution you -to ref er -

THE COURT: Values. have to be related to then .• 

~ Were you familiar with residential° values 

as of November, 1977? 
. .. .,. 

~ Yes, our office was open here and I was 
. 

operating the brokerage office in Richlands • 

~ so you say that the difference in the valµe 

you say there would be little diff erenc~-~ 

MR. P..ART: I object to him·leading his witness, 

Your Honor. 

~ There would be very little difference based 

on prices in 1977 for residential lots. If you take a 

lot that is twenty-five by a hundred and twenty-five and 

you get the value per lot and you multiply this per acre, 

you are going to come up with residentia1 property in that 

··same area is selling very, very expensively as compared 

with other parts of Soutl1west Virginia. 

MR. COHBS: I believe that's ali. 
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2 RECROSS EY..A1'1INATION 

3 BY MR. HART: 

4. Q. . Mr. Wall, is it ,-true you did not do a market 

5 study and did not value this property as residential 

6 property and you can't do so today, can you? 

7 A. No, sir, because to ascertain market value_, 

·8 when you compare it w1th other pieces of similar property, 

9· this is what you are doing. You are doing a market 

10 ar..alysis. And my appraisal reflects what the market is 

11 saying. And the market is saying that ~ropert;es along 

12 u. s. 19 are commercial sites. I do ·not.have a comparable 

13 where a piece of land was purchased and used as a residen-

14 · tial site. 

15 So you can't testify as to what this property 

16 would be worth for residential purposes here today, be-

·11 cause you haven't done a study? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Correct. 

MR. HART: All right. I think that's all •. 

The witness wi.tl1drew. 

CALVIN CANTRELL 

having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as 

follows: 

BY !-! .. ~. CF-llJ-lBERS: 

DIRECT EY~.MINATIOU 
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~ I believe you are Calvin Cantrell? 

A. Right. 

~ You and. your wife, Edith, ~ere, are the 

landowners involved in this taking by the State Highway 

Department? 

A. Yes. 

How long have you owned the property, Mr. 

Cantrell? 

A. About eleven years, approximately. 

~ You and your wife built your house? 
·. 

A. (Affirnative nod of head.) -

~ .And have lived there since you. have owned 

the property and built the house? 

A. Yes. We •.ve owned the property ten years. 

Do you own other property around anywhere? 

A. No. Me and my brother own some up at 

Pounding Mill. 

~ Do you have an estimate of the fair market 

value of the one point three acres which ;the Highway 

Commissioner has taken? 

·A. Well, I feel I ought to have twenty 

thousand for it. 

~ That's your best estimate? 

A.:· Yes. That's rny feeling on it. 
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O. Do you sort of stay abreast of how 

property trades on the market? 

A. No, I don't keep up with it. 

O. Wha.t is your occupation? 

A. Coal miner •. 

Q. You don't have much chance then to be out 

at sales? 

A. No •. 

. Q. Do you feel like there has·been any damage 

to the property which is left; that i~, the four point 

seventy-two acres which results from the· cutting off of 
.. 

the front one point three acres? 

A. Yes, sir, I do~ 

Q. Let me ask you this questi_o.n. Do you feel 

like there might be any value added to the property which 

you have left because the road is coming closer? 

A. No. 

Q. What would you feel like the value of your 

entire property is, the whole thing? 

A. Before the take? 

Q. Before the take. The whole five point 

seventy-two acres with the outbuildings, the hoU.Se and 

all the L~provements? 

A. I would have to have one hundred thousand 
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dollars. 

~ Do you feel like a hundred thousand is the 

fair market value? 

A. (Affirmative.nod of head.) 

~ If you take the value of the entire property 

and subtract what you estimate as the fair market value 

of the property taken by the State, that would leave you 

eighty thousand dollars. Do you feel like your remaining 

property is worth eighty thousand dollars? 

A. No,. I don't. I don't feel like· it would 

be after they take that off. 

· ~ What do you feel like would be the reason-

able value of the property wll;ich you have left? 

A. Well,·I figure around seventy-thre~ thousand. 

~ Seventy-three thousand? 

.A. Yes. 

~ By these figur.es, you have come up with 

twenty thousand dollars for what the State has taken and 

socewhere in the neighborhood of seven.thousand dollars 

for the ·diminished value of what you have left, is that 

right? 
'· 

A..· Yes •. 

MR. CHAHBERS: You Ir..a.y ask him. 

. CROSS :CXt"\HINATION 
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BY MR.HART: 

Q. I believe you testified, Mr. Cantrell, that 

you are not far.ti.liar with real.estate values in Claypool 

Hi.J..l or Ta·zewell County? 
., 

. A. No, I don't. .. 

-
.Q. You are originally from Tazewell County? 

A. No, I.'m originally from ·Buchanan. 
.. 

•.' 

a: .And you are in the coal business, I believe 
.. . 

you said? 
.. ' . ·-. . 

A. Right;. . .. 

Q. So you don't buy~ sell and trade in houses . 

and lots and vacant land? 

No. I've bought a couple of lots, but I've 

never sold any of them yet. '· 

·So you just don't think you are familiar with 

·the market? 

No, sir • 

MR. HART: I believe that's all. 

The witness withdrew and resumed his seat at the 

table with counsel. 

EDITH CANTRELL 

having be.en duly sworn, was examined and testified as 

follows: 

DIRECT EXAHINJl..TION 
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BY MR. CHAMBERS: 

~ You are Edith Cantrell and wife of Calvin 

Cantrell? 

A. Yes, I am. 

~ Mrs. Cantrell, it's getting along toward the 

short.end of ~e day _and I will try to make this as quick 

a:s I can. Do you have an opinion as to the fair market 

value of your entire property,· not considering the State 

is taking any of it, but considering the whole five point 

seventy-two acres? 

A. ·A hundred thousand. 

~ You feQl like that is the fair market value 

··of it? 

·A. (Affirmative nod of head.) 

~ Do you have an idea as to the fair market 

value of the portion which the State has taken of one point 

three acres? 

A. Well, to me,.I wouldn't put a price on it 

that way, other than·I think we ought to have twenty, 

twenty-two or twenty-three thousand. Something like 

that. Probably, it's a good price for what the State would 

take, but it's going to .bring ~11 the fumes from the 

highway ~ 

MR. HART: We object to that. 
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, 
~ You can't tell about that. Do you feel 

like the front property that has been taken is worth 

twenty, twenty-two or twenty-three thousand dollars? 

A. I think so. 

~ If.you subtracted that amount from the 

hund,red thousand as :a whole, ·that.would leave you either 

seventy-seven or seventy-ei·ght or ei,ghty thousand dollars, 

depending on which figure you subtract. Do you think with 

the road that much closer; the one point three acres - -

MR~ HART: I object to him leading his witness. 

He can ask her what it's worth~ 

.THE COURT: Don't lead the witness. 

~ State; Mrs. Cantrell, how, if any, much 

closer the road will be after the road i_..~ buil.t. 

A. Well, they are taking a hundred foot in 

front of the house deep. 

~ So the right of way will be a hundred feet 

closer to you? 

A. Yes. Mr. Canter told us that the day he 

brought t.i.~e map. That's right in front of the house. A 

little farther oh the ot.i."ler end, on the West end. 

~ All right. Considering then the fact you 

lose .. · one point three acres and the hundred feet of your 

front property, and ·that the.road right of way is a 
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. E. Cantrell - Direct by Chambers 133 

hundred feet closer to you, do you·think that your 

remaining property is still then worth either eighty 

thousand, seventy-nine thousand or seventy-eight thousand 

dollars? . ·v• 

~ Well, I hope it would be. 

Q. You ·hope it·wotild be. Do you have any idea 

about what it·would be? 

A..· No. 

MR. CHAMBERS: Okay. That's all. You may ask. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HART: 

Q. Mrs •. Cantrell, I take it you are also not 

familiar with real estate values in Tazewell County? You 

don't buy or sell land? ~ ... 

~ ~ No, sir. 

o.· Or deal in real estate, do you? 

A.. . No, sir~ 

~- ·A.~d you have ~~de no market studies or 

studies of what other people have paid, is that right? 

MR. HART: I 

The witness 

table with counsel. 
' 

MR. COMBS: 

think.that's all. 

withdrew and resumed 

We rest, Your Honor. 
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THE COURT: Is there any rebuttal evidence? 

MR. ffi\Rll'• .. . Could we have just a minute? I don't 

think so. 

THE COURT: Take about a minute. 

~m. HART: We're through. 
, 

THE COUR,T: Ladies and gentlemen, this is all the 

.. evidence you will hear. You may retire to your room while 

we consider instructions. 

The Court, counsel and the reporter withdrew to the 

Court's chambers. 

HR. HART: We object to. any instruction on damages 

to the res.idue for the reason that there is no competent 

·evide~ce before the commission as to any such damages. 

The highway appraiser-testified that he found none and 

the only evidence in the record is that of the landowner 

and the landowner's wife, both of whom admit on cross 

examination that they know nothing of real estate values 

in Tazewell County and don't deal in real estate. 

- THE COURT: I' always understood that the property 

owner is a competent witness in his own behalf and the 

weight of his testimony is for the commission or jury to 

determine. 

r.m.. HART: Your Honor, I think he is competent to 

testify in his own behalf and tell the commission what he 
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2 wants and I think that's exactly what both Mr •. and Mrs. 

3 Cantrell did. But on cross examination, both of them admit 

that they·do not buy and sell land and just don't know 

anything about real estate values. I was frankly a little 

6 surprised that Mr. Cantrell didn't qualify himself at 

7 least somewhat, but he didn't, and I think very honestly. 

8 Be said he just didn't know. I think any award based· on 

9 his testimony should be set aside since the man says he 

10 doesn't know. 

11 MR. CHAMBERS: I believe he said that he wasn't very 

12 .. familiar with property values, but he knows what his ideas 

13 are about 'moving the road a hundred feet closer to . his 

14 front.door and taking twenty perceI\t of his property~ I .. 

15 don't believe you.have to be an expert to know that. 

16 · THE COURT: I think I would have to overrule your 

17 objection to that,· because I think the property owner can 

18 testify. He has some idea about the values of his own 

19 property • 
.. 
20 ·MR. HART: We e.~cept, Your Honor, to the ruling of 

21 the Court. 

22 Instruction· No •. l was granted without objection. 

23 Instruction No. 2 was withdra\'m. 

. 2-1 THE COURT:· I will mark this· as 2 and refuse this 

.. 
25 as offered~ 
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MR. ALTIZER: We.except. 

The Court, counsel and the reporter returned to 

the Courtroom •. 

THE COURT: Hembers of commission, the attorneys. 

have decided they will submit .this case to you without 

argwnent, but I want to read to yoµ this instruction, then 

you may retire to your room to consider your award. 

The Court read the instruction marked granted to 

the,. members. of the colluni.ssion. 

THE COURT: Now you may take these instructions 

'and the report and retire to your room t9 consider your 

· award. There are two blanks left in the report and a place 

. 
for all of you to sign the report once you agree upon it. 

After you have done t..'1.at, let the Sheriff know and he 

will bring you back·out here. 

The commission withdrew from the Courtroom at 

s:oo o'clock p.m. on April 9th, 1979. 

'.!'HE COURT: All right. Bring them in, Sheriff. 

The corranission returned to the Courtroom at 5:20 

o'cloc.tc p.m. on April 9th, 1979. 

THE.COURT: Lady and gentlemen, have you arrived 

at your award? 

COm.USSIONER: We have, Your ·Honor. 

THE COURT: After viewing the said property and· heari g 
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the evidence produced before us, we fix the value of the 

land taken by the State Highway and Transportation Com-

mission at nineteen thousand five hundred dollars and we 

furtller fix t..~e damages, which may accrue to the residue 

beyond .. the enhancement in value to such. res.idue by reason 

of the taking at seven thousand dollars.. Is that your 

award? 

(Affirmative response.) · 

THE COURT: So say you all? 
....... 

(Affirmative response~) 
I ;. 

THE COURT: All right. Thank you for your considera-

tion of this case today. In due c.ourse of time, we will 

see that you are paid. I have enjoyed seeing you today 

and lo.ck forward to seeing you again •. Thank you for your 

services. . , 

The commi.ssion withdrew from the Courtroom at 

5:25 o'clock p.:m. on April 9th, 1979. 

MR. HART: Judge, may we have some time to lodge 

any motions we might have? 

THE COURT: How much time do you want? Ten days? 

MR. HART: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: All right. I won't be up here. Well, 

file yours in ten days and· the landowner may have a like 

time· to respond, i.f they see fit. 
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this in the early part of May.· 

~- F'.ART: All right, sir. 

THESE WERE ALL OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE 

INTRODUCED IH THE HEARING OF·THIS MATTER ON THIS DATE. 

.i 
i 

. , 
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